
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

You are requested to attend a meeting of 
the Audit Committee

on Thursday, 19 April 2018, at 6.30 p.m.
in the Georgian Room, Kendal Town Hall

Committee Membership

Councillors

Stephen Coleman (Chairman)
Stan Collins
Joss Curwen
Andrew Jarvis

Kevin Lancaster
Ian Stewart (Vice-Chairman)

David Williams

Tuesday, 10 April 2018

Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

For all enquiries, please contact:- 
Committee Administrator: Inge Booth
Telephone: 01539 793190
e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I 

1 APOLOGIES 

To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2 MINUTES 5 - 12

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 6 December 2017 (copy attached).

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests.

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public.

5 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 13 - 16

To consider progress against the Committee’s 2017/18 Work Programme.

6 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME 17 - 20

To consider a draft Work Programme for 2018/19.  (The Programme can be 
adapted as necessary during the year.  Provisional dates are shown, dependent 
on confirmation of the Council’s Calendar of Meetings on 22 May 2018.)

7 CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE'S ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 21 - 32

To consider the Chair of the Audit Committee’s draft Annual Report which 
summarises the activities of the Committee during 2017/18.

Regulatory Framework 

8 ANNUAL REPORTING OF OPERATIONAL RISKS TO AUDIT COMMITTEE 33 - 50

To consider the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 
tolerance and the mitigations to manage them.



External Audit 

9 CERTIFICATION WORK FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL FOR 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2017 

51 - 54

To consider a letter from External Audit on certification work for South Lakeland 
District Council for year ended 31 March 2017.

10 THE EXTERNAL AUDIT PLAN FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT 
COUNCIL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018 

55 - 72

To consider the Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council year ended
31 March 2018 and to receive a verbal update.

Internal Audit 

11 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2017/18 73 - 116

To consider a summary of progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan to 
date in 2017/18.

12 INTERIM INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 117 - 126

To consider a summary of the outcomes of the work of the internal audit for 
South Lakeland District Council for 2017/18.

13 INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2018-19 127 - 142

To consider the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018-19.

Financial Issues 

14 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES 

To receive a verbal update from the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 
Officer) on any other significant financial issues.

PART II 

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)
There are no items in this Part of the Agenda.



This page is intentionally left blank



15
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Audit Committee held in the Georgian 
Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Wednesday, 6 December 2017, at 6.30 p.m.

Present

Councillors
  

Ian Stewart (Vice-Chairman)

Stan Collins
Joss Curwen

Andrew Jarvis
Kevin Lancaster

David Williams

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Stephen Coleman (Chairman).

Officers

Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer
Lawrence Conway Chief Executive
John Davies Performance and Risk Officer
Julia Krier Solicitor (Property and Contracts)
Paul Mountford Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer
Helen Smith Financial Services Manager

Also in attendance were Peter Harrison (Internal Audit Manager), John Farrar (External 
Auditor) and Daniel Watson (External Audit Manager).

AUD/33 MINUTES 

During consideration of the minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on
20 September 2017, it was raised that John Farrar and Daniel Watson, External Audit, 
had indicated at Minute No. AUD/14 (Declarations of Interest) that they would be leaving 
the room during consideration of the Update on Appointment of External Auditors (Minutes 
Nos.AUD/28, AUD/30 and AUD/32 refer).

RESOLVED – That, subject to the inclusion at AUD/14 of the details outlined above, the 
Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting of the 
Committee held on 20 September 2017.

AUD/34 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

AUD/35 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda.

AUD/36 AUDIT COMMITTEE 2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 

The Financial Services Manager presented a report setting out the progress made against 
the 2017/18 Work Programme.  She drew attention to an additional item on the agenda 
regarding preparing for the introduction of the General Data Protection Regulation and the 

Page 5

Item No.2



16
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

Data Protection Bill around which queries had been raised at the last meeting of the 
Committee.

RESOLVED – That the progress against the 2017/18 Work Programme be noted.

AUD/37 PREPARING FOR THE INTRODUCTION OF THE GENERAL DATA PROTECTION 
REGULATION (GDPR) AND THE DATA PROTECTION BILL 

The Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer presented a report which set out the 
preparation and proposed Action Plan for the introduction of the General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR) and the Data Protection Bill.

The overarching aim of the GDPR was to harmonise data protection law across Europe 
and bring it up to date with technological advancements. Implementing the GDPR would 
require a corporate, cross-organisational approach. A project initiation document 
(Appendix 1 to the report) set out the scope, objectives, outcomes and deliverables of the 
project to implement GDPR, and a General Data Protection Regulation Project Board had 
been established to ensure senior leadership, drive and accountability.

During discussion, the Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer confirmed that both 
staff and Members were to be provided with training on the relevant requirements early in 
the New Year.  In addition, reference was made to the principle of the right to be forgotten 
and the importance of ensuring that appropriate policy was put in place as soon as 
possible was raised.

The Vice-Chairman welcomed the report and, on behalf of the Committee, asked for 
thanks to be passed on to the officers involved in the work being carried out.

RESOLVED – That the following be noted:-

(1) the requirements of the General Data Protection Regulation and the principles 
underpinning the regulations, in particular the need to adopt a ‘Privacy by Design’ 
approach; and 

(2) the approach set out in the report for General Data Protection Regulation 
implementation.

AUD/38 RISK MANAGEMENT UPDATE 

The Performance and Risk Officer presented the Strategic Risk Register (Quarter 2) 
which outlined all of those risks above and below the line of risk tolerance. Mitigations 
designed to reduce the risks in terms of likelihood or impact or both were listed against 
each risk above the line of tolerance.  The Strategic Risk Register was reviewed by Senior 
Management Team each quarter as part of the Council’s quarterly performance 
monitoring and reporting arrangements and that review had informed this report.

The Performance and Risk Officer drew attention to the fact that, out of 14 risks in total, 
six were currently above the line of risk management and were being regularly monitored.  
He also pointed out that Risk 17 (Cyber Security Incident) had been included further to a 
previous request made by the Committee.

In response to queries raised in relation to that status of Risks 12 (Health and Safety 
management of contracts – records for on site checks) and 16 (Waste Collection – 
Reversing Manoeuvres), the Chief Executive informed Members that Senior Management 

Page 6



17
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

Team reviewed these risks on a regular basis.  These risks would remain on the Register 
until they could be categorically regarded as safe.

The Chief Executive also explained that there were risks included on the Register which 
had not yet taken place.  This assisted in maintaining a focus and awareness of the 
potential risk.  It was suggested that, in addition, consideration might be given to logging 
where a risk had occurred in order to assist in the assessment of tolerance.

In response to a concern raised with regard ambiguity in the risk matrix key, the Chief 
Executive and Performance and Risk Officer undertook to look at the wording relating to 
risks positioned in the blue zone.

Attention was drawn to Risk 8 and confirmation was sought regarding whether the two 
mitigations with a due date of 31 May 2017 had been complete.  The Vice-Chairman 
asked for a response in writing.

Concern was expressed with regard to Risk 17 and the fact that the likelihood of a cyber 
security incident as being very low.  The Vice-Chairman suggested, therefore, that an 
explanation for the low likelihood be brought to the next meeting, including information on 
the software in place to prevent cyber attacks and on the processes for escalation and 
alerting other authorities and agencies.

RESOLVED – That the Strategic Risk Register, as at Appendix 1 to the report, be noted.

AUD/39 THE ANNUAL EXTERNAL AUDIT LETTER FOR SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT 
COUNCIL 

The External Audit Annual Audit Letter, which summarised the key findings arising from 
work carried out by External Audit at the Council for the year ended 31 March 2017, was 
presented by the External Audit Manager.

The key messages were that External Audit had provided an unqualified opinion on the 
Council’s financial statements on 21 September 2017.  External Audit were satisfied that 
the Council had in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 31 March 2017.  External Audit 
had certified that they had completed the audit of the accounts of South Lakeland District 
Council in accordance with the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Code of Audit 
Practice on 21 September 2017.

In closing, the External Audit Manager was pleased to confirm that the work on the 
Council’s Housing Benefit subsidy claim on behalf of the Department for Work and 
Pensions had been completed in the previous week and that the Council’s subsidy claim 
was unqualified for the first time in a number of years.  This was a great achievement and 
South Lakeland District Council was in a minority in this respect.

On behalf of the Committee, the Vice-Chairman expressed thanks to the staff involved for 
this exceptional outcome, pointing out that the bar had been set for future years.

RESOLVED – That the contents of the Annual External Audit Letter for the year ended
31 March 2017 be noted.

Page 7



18
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

AUD/40 EXTERNAL AUDITOR'S PROGRESS REPORT AND UPDATE 

The External Auditor presented a report providing the Committee with a summary of the 
progress made by Grant Thornton in delivering their responsibilities as the Council’s 
External Auditors as of November 2017.  The report also included details of emerging 
national issues and developments that might be relevant to the Council.

The External Auditor drew particular attention to the Housing Benefit audit in 2018/19 and 
the Financial Services Manager confirmed that Grant Thornton had recently been selected 
through the Council’s procurement process to carry out the Housing Benefits audit.

The External Auditor referred to a recent National Audit Office publication providing 
guidance on cyber security which he undertook to have forwarded to all Members of the 
Council.

In presenting the report, the External Auditor announced that this would be Daniel 
Watson’s last appearance at Audit Committee as South Lakeland District Council’s 
External Audit Manager.  The Vice-Chairman thanked Mr Watson for his contribution and 
offered him best wishes for the future.

RESOLVED – That the progress made by External Auditors be noted.

AUD/41 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2017-18 

The Internal Audit Manager introduced the Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18. The 
report provided a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit Annual Plan to date.

Following the Internal Audit Plan’s approval by the Committee in April 2017, seven 
reviews had been finalised, with fieldwork having commenced on the review of the 
awarding of grants.

The report also contained the executive summaries of the four audit reports completed in 
the period: Insurance; Building Control; Payroll; and ICT Disaster Recovery. These reports 
were also presented by the Internal Audit Manager.

The Review of Insurance had resulted in a reasonable assurance assessment. Two action 
points had been identified, one categorised as ‘important’ and the other as ‘routine’.  
Discussion took place with regard to the Priority 2 Recommendation around the 
requirement for contract documentation to be completed prior to the commencement of 
works and the Chief Executive drew attention to the fact that there were exceptional 
occasions where the risk of not carrying out the work outweighed that of not completing 
the documentation first.  These were rare occasions and the exception.  The Financial 
Services Manager explained that, in such cases, the contractor would already have 
confirmed within the tender documentation that they had adequate insurance cover.  The 
Chief Executive informed Members that any future decisions to commence with works 
prior to completion of all documentation would be taken in consultation with the Finance 
and Legal Teams.  The Internal Audit Manager confirmed to the Committee that 
Management recognised the need to move forward and address the recommendation.  
The Chief Executive also highlighted the use of language “on-going, high impact risk”, yet 
the action point did not portray such urgency and requested that this be reviewed and the 
correct narrative/action point be inserted.

The Review of Building Control had resulted in a substantial assurance assessment. No 
action points had been identified.

Page 8



19
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

The Review of Payroll had resulted in a substantial assurance assessment. Two action 
points had been identified, one categorised as ‘important’ and the other as ‘routine’.

The Review of ICT Disaster Recovery had resulted in a reasonable assurance 
assessment. Three ‘important’ action points and one ‘routine’ action point had been put 
forward following the review.  The Chief Executive reported that this area was currently 
being addressed.  Members, however, expressed concern and proposed that the Shared 
ICT Manager be asked to attend the next meeting of the Audit Committee in order to 
provide assurance that the necessary improvements were being made.  In addition, they 
asked that the matter be brought to the attention of both the Leader and Housing and 
Innovation Portfolio Holder.

Internal Audit had also assessed the extent to which previous internal audit 
recommendations had been implemented. The report showed that 19 recommendations 
were yet to be implemented but on target and that implementation was in progress for one 
where the original target date had not been met. Four of the recommendations had been 
implemented and were now considered closed.

The Vice-Chairman expressed the Committee’s thanks to those staff involved in providing 
positive responses to Internal Audit’s recommendations.

RESOLVED – That the following be noted:-

(1) the progress achieved in 2017/18 in delivering the Audit Plan and the outcomes of 
completed audit reviews, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report; 

(2) the attached audit reports, as set out in Appendix 2 to the report;

(3) the status of outstanding recommendations contained within the follow up report, 
as set out in Appendix 3 to the report; and

(4) the Shared ICT Manager be requested to attend the next meeting of the 
Committee in order to provide assurance that the recommendations relating to the ICT 
Disaster Recovery Audit Report are being addressed, the matter also being brought to the 
attention of both the Leader and Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder.

AUD/42 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2017/18 

The Financial Services Manager presented a report outlining proposed accounting 
policies to be used for the closure of the 2017/18 accounts. These had been prepared in 
line with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of 
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the UK 2017/18.  She reported that, apart from 
changes to the dates, the policies had not changed from those for 2016/17 and did not 
depart from the provisions of the 2017/18 Code.

RESOLVED – That the accounting policies, as set out at Appendix 1 to the report, be 
adopted for closure of the 2017/18 Accounts.

AUD/43 AUDIT COMMITTEE CONTRIBUTION TO REVIEW OF CONSTITUTION 

The Audit Committee’s Contribution to the Review of the Constitution was presented by 
the Financial Services Manager.

Page 9



20
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

The current review had identified some very minor changes to clarify that the Solicitor to 
the Council should be consulted before insurance claims are settled, that procurement 
exercises relating to insurance claims be carried out in accordance with the requirements 
of the insurer and that the Monitoring Officer should have delegation to approve virement 
of budgets relating to elections. In addition, the Audit Committee’s role in monitoring the 
expenditure of funds transferred from the South Lakeland District Council Royal Wedding 
Fund was no longer required and therefore it had been proposed that this be removed 
from the Committee’s list of functions.

The proposed minor changes would be included in the Monitoring Officer’s annual review 
of the Constitution due to be reported to Council in March 2018.

RESOLVED – That the proposals for changes to the Constitution be noted.

AUD/44 AUDIT COMMITTEE RISK REGISTER 

The updated Audit Committee Risk Register was presented by the Financial Services 
Manager. The Risk Register had last been reviewed by the Committee on 26 July 2017 
and the recommendations from that meeting had been included within the update.

The Financial Services Manager made particular reference to Risk AC 4 (External Auditor 
Appointment).  The Council having joined the sector-led national procurement exercise, it 
was expected that the external auditors would be appointed in December 2017.  It was, 
therefore, proposed that the likelihood be downgraded to very low and that officers be 
authorised to archive the risk once the appointment process was completed.

RESOLVED – That

(1) the updated Audit Committee Risk Register be noted; and

(2) the Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) be delegated authority to 
archive Risk AC 4 following completion of the process for the appointment of an External 
Auditor.

AUD/45 REVIEW OF THE LOCAL CODE OF GOVERNANCE 

The review of the Local Code of Governance was presented by the Financial Services 
Manager.

Under the Accounts and Audit Regulations (2015), the Council was required to review the 
effectiveness of the system of internal control annually and report this through an Annual 
Governance Statement. The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy 
(CIPFA) had published a revised version of their governance framework for local 
authorities. This counted as proper practice and was to be applied for financial years from 
1 April 2016 onwards. The new framework had been re-arranged from the previous 
framework’s six principles to seven, in line with CIPFA’s broader International Framework: 
Good Governance in the Public Sector (2014).

The main changes arising from the review had been to tidy up the local code provisions 
that refer to partnership working and to make these more principles-based with reference 
to a Partnership Guidance document. As part of the annual review, officers would also 
update the partnerships register to evidence that the principles of the local code were 
being followed and that partnership guidance was being considered.

Page 10



21
06.12.2017 Audit Committee

The Vice-Chairman referred to a recent guidance issued by Grant Thornton on 
partnerships and asked John Farrar of External Audit to provide a copy for distribution to 
Members of the Audit Committee.

RESOLVED – That

(1) the proposed revisions to the Local Code of Governance, as at Appendix 1 to the 
report, be noted;

(2)  full Council be recommended to approve the amended Code, as at Appendix 2 to 
the report; and

(3) the Annual Governance Statement Action Plan, as at Appendix 3 to the report, be 
noted.

AUD/46 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Financial Services Manager reported that the annual review of the Audit Committee’s 
effectiveness had been carried out using principles established by the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).  The conclusion of the review, which had 
been carried out using a questionnaire approach, was that the Committee could 
demonstrate that it had been established in accordance with best practice and that it 
continued to operate effectively.

RESOLVED – That

(1) the review, and its conclusion that the Audit Committee is operating effectively in 
all material aspects, be approved; and 

(2) the skills framework for members of the Audit Committee, as at Appendix 2 to the 
report, be noted.

AUD/47 OTHER SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES 

The Financial Services Manager had no further significant financial issues to report, 
however, in response to a query, explained the Council’s processes around potential 
misclassification of second homes for Council Tax.

The meeting ended at 8.05 p.m.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 1 of 4

Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018

Committee Administration 

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √

Set work programme for coming year Shelagh 
McGregor √

Review progress against work programme 
this document

Shelagh 
McGregor √ √ √ √

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings Helen Smith √ As needed As needed July 2018

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report

(Referral to Council)
Helen 

Smith/Chair √

AGS Action plan progress report (Ext Audit 
Recs if relevant)

Shelagh 
McGregor

√ (see Statement 
of Accounts report 

Appendix 3)

√ (see Review 
Local Code of 
Governance 
Appendix 3)

Update to July 
2018 AC

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth √

External Audit

2016/17 Annual Audit Letter John Farrer √

2016/17 Grant Certification Report John Farrer √

P
age 13

Item
 N

o.5



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 2 of 4

Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018

2017/18 Opinion Audit Plan John Farrer √

Audit Fee Letter John Farrer July 2018

External Auditor Update John Farrer √ √ Verbal

Appointment of External Audit Helen Smith Completed to be taken off 

Internal Audit

2016/17 Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison √ Interim

2017/18 Internal Audit Plan Progress & 
Individual Internal Audit Reports 
Recommendation Follow Up Report 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √

2018/19 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) Peter Harrison √

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith √

Accounts

2016/17 Note the pre external audit Statement 
of Accounts and Annual Governance 
Statement July

Approve the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts 
Sign letter of representation Sept this yr July 
next year

Helen 
Smith/Pete 

Notley
√ √

P
age 14



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 3 of 4

Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018

2016/17 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report)

Dan Watson √

Review Accounting Policies for 2017/18 
Statement of Accounts Helen Smith √ 

Review 2017/18 AGS Helen Smith July 2018

Regulatory Framework

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * Helen Smith Incorporated into Statement of Accounts

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith √

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity √

Review Whistleblowing Policy

Helen 
Smith/Katie 

Booth √

Review of Performance & Risk Management 
Framework Simon McVey No change

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance Simon McVey √

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √ √

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √ √

P
age 15



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2017/18 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 4 of 4

Lead Officer 26 July 2017 20 Sept  2017 6 Dec 2017 19 April 2018

Review Local Code of Governance  Helen Smith √

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith √

Introduction of General Data Protection 
Regulations and Data Protection Bill Paul Mountford √

Financial Issues

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda

Shelagh 
McGregor As required

P
age 16



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 1 of 4

Lead Officer 25 July 19 Sept  5 Dec 18 April 

Committee Administration 

Committee Terms of Reference Inge Booth √

Set work programme for coming year Shelagh 
McGregor √

Review progress against work programme Shelagh 
McGregor √ √ √ √

Training – to be arranged as necessary 
outside meetings Helen Smith √ As needed As needed As needed 

Chair’s Audit Committee Annual Report

(Referral to Council)
Helen 

Smith/Chair √

Private Meeting – Internal and External Audit Inge Booth √

External Audit

2017/18 Annual Audit Letter John Farrer √

2017/18 Grant Certification Report John Farrer √

2018/19 Opinion Audit Plan John Farrer √

Audit Fee Letter John Farrer √

External Auditor Update John Farrer √ √ √ √

P
age 17

Item
 N

o.6



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 2 of 4

Lead Officer 25 July 19 Sept  5 Dec 18 April 

Internal Audit

2017/18 Annual Internal Audit Report Peter Harrison √

2018/19 Internal Audit Plan Progress & 
Individual Internal Audit Reports 
Recommendation Follow Up Report 

Peter Harrison √ √ √ √

2019/20 Internal Audit Annual Plan  (including 
review of Internal Audit Charter) Peter Harrison √

Review effectiveness of Internal Audit Helen Smith √

Accounts

2017/18 Note the pre-external audit 
Statement of Accounts and Annual 
Governance Statement produced by 31 May 

Approve the 2017/18 Statement of Accounts 
Sign letter of representation Sept this yr July 
next year

Helen Smith √

2017/18 Statement of Accounts - Receive 
external auditor’s opinion on Accounts (Audit 
Findings Report & Financial Resilience 
Report)

John Farrer √

Review Accounting Policies for 2018/19 
Statement of Accounts Helen Smith √ 

P
age 18



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 3 of 4

Lead Officer 25 July 19 Sept  5 Dec 18 April 

2016/17 AGS Action plan progress report 

2017/18 AGS Review Action plan if required

(amalgamate the two into 1)

Shelagh 
McGregor

Helen Smith
√

Actioned as part 
of year end 

process.

Reported in  
July 19

Regulatory Framework

Review Annual Governance Statement for 
inclusion in the St of A/Cs Report above * Helen Smith Incorporated into Statement of Accounts

Contribute to review of Constitution Helen Smith √

Annual Review of Anti-Fraud Policy & Activity √

Review Whistleblowing Policy

Helen 
Smith/Katie 

Booth √

Review of Performance and Risk 
Management Framework Simon McVey √

Review of Operational Risks above the line of 
risk tolerance Simon McVey √

Audit Committee Risk Register Helen Smith √ √

Strategic Risk Register Simon McVey √ √

Review Local Code of Governance  Helen Smith √

Review Audit Committee’s effectiveness Helen Smith √

P
age 19



19/4/2018 AUDIT COMMITTEE

2018/19 WORK PROGRAMME 

Page 4 of 4

Lead Officer 25 July 19 Sept  5 Dec 18 April 

Introduction of General Data Protection 
Regulations and Data Protection Bill Paul Mountford √

Financial Issues

Update of significant financial issues not 
covered elsewhere on the agenda

Shelagh 
McGregor As required

P
age 20



South Lakeland District Council
Audit Committee 

19 April 2018
CHAIR OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE’S ANNUAL 

REPORT 2017/18
PORTFOLIO: not applicable

REPORT FROM: Cllr Stephen Coleman - Chairman of the Audit 
Committee

REPORT AUTHOR: Helen Smith – Financial Services Manager

WARDS: Corporate Issue

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1 This report is presented to summarise the activities of the Audit Committee 

during the current Council year
2.0 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:-

(1) consider the draft report; and
(2) authorise the Chairman to submit it, with any agreed amendments, to 

Council.
BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS

3.1 The terms of reference of the Audit Committee require the Committee to report 
annually to Council on its work for the year.  As well as informing Councillors 
generally, the report helps to demonstrate the continuing effectiveness of the 
Committee.

3.2 The attached draft report describes the Committee’s work during 2017/18, 
grouped under functional headings.  For completeness, agenda items for this 
meeting are included in the report on the assumption that they will be accepted: 
if necessary, changes will be made to reflect any different outcome.  The 
Council year has been chosen for reporting purposes although this means that 
some cases do not fit the normal reporting cycle.

4.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
4.1 The Committee’s terms of reference require the Chairman to produce this 

report; its contents are subject to consideration by Members.

Page 21

Item No.7



5.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
5.1 To develop and embed a high performance culture.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS
6.1 Financial and Resources
6.1.1 This report has no direct financial implications
6.2 Human Resources
6.2.1 There are no direct human resources implications of this report.
6.3 Legal
6.3.1 There are no direct legal implications of this report.
6.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
6.4.1

Have you completed and Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental Impact Assessment?

Yes ☐ No ☒

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, 
please explain your reasons.

This report is a corporate 
governance issue and has no 
direct social, economic and 
environmental impacts

7.5 Equality and Diversity
7.5.1

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes ☐ No ☒

If you have not completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis, please explain your reasons.

This report is a corporate 
governance issue and has no 
direct equality and diversity 
impacts.

7.6 Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required
No discernible risks in 
the production of the 
report

CONTACT OFFICERS
Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager, 01539 793147, 
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 
Appendix No.
1 Audit Committee Annual Report 2017/18

Page 22



BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE
Name of Background document Where it is available
None

TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio 
Holder

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

05/04/18 n/a 05/04/18 n/a n/a

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

n/a 19/04/18 17/4/18 05/04/18 05/04/18

Human Resource Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

n/a n/a n/a

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



Appendix 1

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18

Chairman’s Foreword

This is the eleventh annual report of the Audit Committee and the tenth under my 
Chairmanship.  

The Committee’s role is to provide the Council and the public with independent assurance 
that it is operating securely and effectively within a sound governance framework.  The 
Committee’s brief covers risk management, performance management, governance and 
constitutional arrangements as well as traditional finance activities.  Our role is to oversee 
the management of those processes to ensure that robust procedures are in place without 
being involved in the detailed operation.

Audit Committee Members take their role seriously and are committed to their work.  We set 
out a full annual work programme that is monitored at each meeting and revised as 
necessary.  We have been trained on a range of relevant subjects and understand the 
nature of local government audit. 

The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  From May 
2012 the responsibility for the functions of the Accounts Committee transferred to the Audit 
Committee.

The Committee’s terms of reference allow it to meet privately with External and Internal Audit 
(without council officers); earlier this year we had the ninth annual session with the two 
organisations to discuss topical issues.  

The Committee receives valuable support from both External and Internal Auditors, and 
enjoys a good working relationship with the respective Audit Managers.  All of their reports 
are presented to the Committee which pursues identified weaknesses in control systems to 
make sure that they are corrected.  In our experience, Council officers are receptive to the 
necessary changes and seek improvements wherever possible.

I am pleased to present this report on behalf of the Committee.  It confirms the progress that 
we have made and that we continue to be an effective independent element of the Council’s 
governance arrangements.  We know that Local Government doesn’t stand still and the 
Committee will continue to develop so that it is always able to anticipate and deal with new 
aspects of finance and governance.

Councillor Stephen Coleman
Chairman of the Audit Committee
April 2018

Page 25



Purpose of the Report
This report summarises the work carried out by the Audit Committee during 2017/18.  It 
demonstrates to Council and stakeholders the effectiveness of the Committee in assessing 
and maintaining the organisation’s internal control environment and governance 
arrangements. 

Background
The Audit Committee was established in October 2006 to provide the Council with effective 
leadership on governance, financial reporting and audit issues.  The Council also had an 
Accounts Committee to approve the draft and audited Statement of Accounts.  As a result of 
the changes introduced by the Account and Audit Regulations 2011 which no longer 
required member approval of the draft Statement of Accounts, the Accounts Committee was 
discontinued with effect from the Annual General Meeting of Council in May 2012 and from 
that date the responsibility for the remaining functions of the Accounts Committee 
transferred to the Audit Committee

The Terms of Reference for the Committee have been modelled on CIPFAi guidance and 
hence represent best practice.  A fully functioning Audit Committee needs to provide 
effective challenge across the Council’s activities together with independent assurance on 
the risk management framework and associated internal control environment to Members 
and the public and to demonstrate the impact of its work.  The Terms of Reference are 
reviewed annually with no substantive changes required in 2016/17 to the amendments 
approved by Council on 11 December 2014 beyond updating the names of the companies 
providing audit services.

This is the eleventh Annual Report of the Committee, covering the period from May 2017 to 
April 2018.  This reporting timescale matches both the Council year and the external auditing 
cycle.   The Committee structures and plans its work around four main functional areas: 
external audit, internal audit, accounts and regulatory framework.  This report follows the 
same format in its summary of the year’s activities.

The Committee
Following the expansion of the duties of the Audit Committee to include the functions of the 
Accounts Committee the Committee has increased in size from five Councillors to seven.  All 
Councillors are independent of the Council’s Cabinet and the Committee membership is 
politically balanced.  Councillor Stephen Coleman has served as Chairman since May 2008.  
The Committee met on four occasions in 2017/18.  

The External and Internal Auditors, Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer are invited 
to all Committee meetings.  In addition its Members meet periodically with both Audit 
Managers to discuss topical issues without officers being present.  The Committee has the 
ability to seek attendance from any officer or Member of the Council and has exercised this 
right on several occasions.

Training is an essential element for an Audit Committee.  The Committee receive annual 
training, have been updated on statutory accounting requirements and are alert to the 
possibility of areas in which their knowledge could be extended.

The Committee has developed a structured work programme which maps out its activities on 
an annual basis.  This programme is supplemented by new requirements as they are 
identified.  Progress against the programme is monitored at each Committee meeting. 

External Audit
The Government changed the arrangements for the delivery of external audit for local 
government following the announcement of the abolition of the Audit Commission.  The 
external audit contract for the North West was awarded to Grant Thornton from September 
2012 for five years.  

Page 26



The Audit Committee receives and approves the external auditor’s Annual Audit Plan.  It 
comments on the fee rates and work programme consultation carried out by Grant Thornton 
based on fees set by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd, the independent company set 
up by the Local Government Association with delegated statutory functions to set audit fees 
and make arrangements for certain audits.  Audit Committee receives the Annual Findings 
Report and the annual Grant Certification Report and monitors actions against the 
recommendations within these reports.  The Government have dropped the requirement of 
auditors to prepare a full Use of Resources assessment: instead a judgement is included in 
the Annual Governance Report indicating whether the Council has adequate arrangements 
to secure Value for Money in the use of resources.  The Annual Audit Letter summarised the 
auditor’s work for the year and opinion on the Council’s financial statements and value for 
money arrangements, as summarised later in this report.

The Council opted to join the national sector-led procurement exercise for external audit 
services and in December 2017 Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd appointed Grant 
Thornton for a further five-year term.

Internal Audit
The Committee oversees the work of Internal Audit.  The internal audit service has been 
provided by TIAA Ltd since April 2016.  The internal auditor’s terms of reference are formally 
reviewed each year to ensure they continue to meet professional standards and good 
practice.

At the beginning of the year the Committee approves the internal audit plan which sets out 
the individual audits to be carried out: coverage of the Council’s activities is informed by a 
risk-based audit needs assessment.  This process, introduced from April 2015, now 
focusses internal audit resources at areas of known or perceived risk within the Council, 
thereby increasing the possibility of lower levels of assurance. 

Performance against the plan is monitored by formal progress reports to each Committee 
meeting, supplemented as necessary by verbal updates from the Internal Audit Manager.  
The Committee closely monitors the implementation of recommendations made by both 
External and Internal Audit.

All individual audit reports are presented to the Committee.  During the 2017/18 year, 12 
reports were considered, including 4 brought-forward from 2015/16, which recorded the 
following assurance levels:ii

Assurance Level 2017/18 2016/17 2015/16 2014/15 2013/14

Substantial 4 0 2 3 0

Reasonable 10 9 8 11 6

Limited (previously Partial) 1 3 1 3 1

None (previously Limited) 0 0 0 0 0

Total 15 12 11 17 7

One report was at draft stage at the end of the year and work was in progress on a further 
audit.  Of the final two audits for 2017/18, Council Tax has been deferred until 2018/19 due 
to system changes and asset management has been deferred due until the Asset 
Management Strategy was available.

The Committee concentrates its attention on high priority recommendationsiii made in 
reports.  Where a report carries partial or limited assurance, the Committee has adopted the 
practice of requiring the relevant Assistant Director or Operational Manager to attend its next 

Page 27



meeting where appropriate to demonstrate that progress is being made in implementing its 
recommendations.  If necessary, Members have requested subsequent update reports.  

The Internal Audit Manager presented his Annual Report for 2016/17 to the Committee in 
July 2017.  This summarised the results of his work during the year and contains his opinion 
of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Council’s internal control environment.  That 
opinion concludes that, for the systems reviewed, that, for the areas reviewed during the 
year, there is reasonable assurance that effective risk management, control and governance 
processes are in place to manage the achievement of its objectives.  In the Internal Audit 
Manager’s experience, this profile of assurance is comparable with other local authorities.  
The Final 2017/18 Annual Internal Audit Report will be prepared for the July 2018 Committee 
meeting but the Internal Audit Manager has produced an Interim Internal Audit Report for the 
April 2018 which also concludes there is reasonable assurance. 

In September 2017 the Committee considered a review of the effectiveness of the system of 
Internal Audit by reference to Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) and associated 
Local Government Application Note (LGAN).  This showed that TIAA Ltd fully complied with 
the relevant standards and concluded it was operating effectively.

The Council’s Internal Auditors operate within a broad framework set by the contract 
between the two organisations. It is a requirement of the mandatory Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards that the Council has an audit charter in place, which has been approved by 
senior management and the Audit Committee.  Key elements of the Charter are:

 Reference to the mandatory nature of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.
 The functional reporting line of internal audit to the Audit Committee to maintain audit 

independence.
 The requirement for internal audit to provide an annual opinion on the Council’s 

arrangements for governance, risk management and internal control.
 Internal Audit’s right of access to all activities, premises, records, personnel, cash 

and stores as required to undertake agreed internal audit assignments.
 The responsibility of the Head of Internal audit (the Group Audit Manager) to prepare 

an annual risk based audit plan for approval by senior management and the Audit 
Committee.

 Certain specific responsibilities of the Head of Internal audit 

Accounts 
Each year CIPFA updates the accounting requirements for statutory accounts by issuing a 
revised Code of Practice.  The Committee is informed of these changes by means of an 
informal training session and approves the resulting amendments to the Council’s 
Accounting Policies.  In December 2016 the Committee noted a draft set of Accounting 
Policies that would be applicable for the preparation of the 2016/17 Statement of Accounts.  

Changes to the Accounts and Audit Regulations no longer require member approval of the 
draft Statement of Accounts prior to its submission for audit.  Instead the Council’s Chief 
Finance Officer, the Assistant Director (Resources) approved the draft Statement by the 
statutory deadline of 30 June 2016.  

In September 2017 the Audit Committee received the Audit Findings Report from Grant 
Thornton, incorporating their draft opinion on the 2016/17 accounts, and approved the 
audited Statement of Accounts.  The auditors reported their intention to provide an 
unqualified opinion on the financial statements.  Their key message was that the Council 
produced good quality financial statements that were free from material error and supported 
by comprehensive working papers.  Only disclosure amendments were required to the 
accounts and there were no major issues identified.  

In respect of the Authority’s arrangements for securing value for money, Grant Thornton 
reported proper arrangements were in place to secure economy, efficiency and 

Page 28



effectiveness.  The Council is prioritising its resources within tighter budgets and is 
challenging the way it delivers its services to ensure cost reductions are achieved, whilst 
maintaining service delivery.  

The Annual Audit Letter, reported to Audit Committee in December 2017 confirmed the audit 
conclusions in relation to 2016/17 were:

 an unqualified opinion on the accounts which give a true and fair view of the 
Council's financial position as at 31 March 2017 and its income and expenditure for 
the year;

 an unqualified conclusion in respect of the Council's arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.

Due to changes in the statutory requirements the Council will be required to produce the 
2017/18 accounts by the end of May 2018 and the audit must be completed by the end of 
July 2018: both these deadlines are one month shorter than the current arrangements.  The 
Council undertook to produce the 2016/17 accounts to the new timetable and the external 
audit was arranged for June and July 2017 with the expectation that the external audit report 
will be considered by Audit Committee in July 2017.  The Council produced the accounts for 
audit by the end of May 2017 and they were signed by the Chief Finance Officer in June 
2017.  The external audit was carried out during August and September 2017 with the 
external audit report considered by Audit Committee in September 2017.  

Regulatory Framework
Corporate Governance 

Following drafting work by the Audit Committee using a framework produced by CIPFA and 
SOLACEiv, Council approved a Local Code of Governance in May 2008.  The Committee 
reviews this Code annually.  CIPFA published a revised version of their governance 
framework in 2016 which applied from 1 April 2016.  Audit Committee considered and 
approved a re-written Local Code of Governance in December 2016 which was approved by 
Council later in December 2016.  Minor changes were considered by Audit Committee and 
approved by Council in December 2017. 

The Council is required to formally review its governance arrangements annually and the 
Committee carries out this work on its behalf.  This is achieved by the production of an 
Annual Governance Statement (AGS) which is a far-reaching review of the effectiveness of 
the Council’s governance, including departmental assurance statements and Internal Audit’s 
annual opinion report.

Members of the Audit Committee sat on a Panel which examined and approved the 2016/17 
AGS before its adoption by the Leader and Chief Executive and inclusion in the Statement of 
Accounts.  The final Statement provides a thorough review of governance arrangements.  
Audit Committee members will revisit the subject when they review the 2017/18 AGS 
alongside the Statement of Accounts in July 2018.

The Audit Committee conducts an annual review of the Constitution.  During 2015/16 
substantial changes were made to improve the financial management and contract 
management processes of the Council including changes to reflect statutory changes in the 
Public Contracts Regulations 2015.  Only minor changes were required in 2017/18 and 
these were approved by Audit Committee in December 2018 and Council in March 2018.

Fraud Prevention and Whistleblowing

The promotion of fraud awareness is important to Audit Committee Members who encourage 
officers in their efforts; as a visible demonstration of this commitment, the Committee has 
introduced an annual report of anti-fraud activity, the first being presented in 2009.  The 
Committee received a review in September 2017 of activity up to that date.  Following 
changes to the Department for Work and Pension Single Fraud Investigation Service (SFIS) 

Page 29



was set up and fraud investigation staff from this Council transferred to the SFIS in July 
2015. The Council retained one member of the counter-fraud team as a Corporate Anti-
Fraud Officer who works closely with both the Revenues and Benefits Team and the Finance 
Team in tackling fraud.  The Corporate Anti-Fraud Officer has also be involved in raising the 
profile of anti-fraud and corruption in the authority. This has included attending team 
meetings, briefing Operational managers and reviewing policies and practices related to 
Interviews under Caution across the Council to ensure consistency of practice.  
Investigations have included the submission of false invoices for flood grant claims, review of 
council tax exemptions and eligibility for homelessness support. The Council is also working 
with South Lakes Housing to review all applications for Right-to-Buy as this has been 
identified nationally as an area of high risk and high value.

During the year, the Committee reviewed the Anti-Fraud and Corruption Policy, approved a 
new Counter Fraud Strategy and updated the Anti-Money Laundering Policy to ensure 
robust reporting and investigation arrangements where a fraudulent act is suspected.  

Risk Management 

The Committee receives annual progress reports on the Council’s risk management 
arrangements.  The Committee maintains a risk register relating to its own activities and 
reviews this periodically.  The experience gained from the years of the Committee’s 
existence has enabled it to manage its risks effectively within its agreed risk appetite.  

Performance Management 

The Committee receives an annual progress report on the Council’s performance 
management arrangements.  The Committee received the annual review of the Performance 
Management Framework in April 2018. The framework describes how the Council monitors 
its performance and is intended to support the Council in developing and embedding a high 
performance culture to further enhance the quality of services for the people of South 
Lakeland.

Effectiveness of the Audit Committee

Officers from the Council used a checklist to test the effectiveness of the Committee 
produced by CIPFA as part of its Practical Guidance for Local Authority and Police Audit 
Committees in 2013.  The conclusion was that the Committee has been established in 
accordance with best practice and is operating effectively in all material respects. Minor 
weaknesses identified in past reviews have been recognised and addressed, including the 
introduction of separate meetings with the Internal and External Audit Managers; however 
Members need to be continually aware of areas in which they should be challenging the 
performance of the Cabinet and Council generally.

Conclusions
This Annual Report has summarised the work of the Committee over the last twelve months, 
indicating that it is functioning in accordance with best practice and providing independent 
assurance of the Council’s governance arrangements.  Committee Members believe that it is 
carrying out this role effectively, an opinion supported by the officer review.

 The Committee will continue to develop its role and impact through ongoing Member 
training and refinement of its work programme in order to meet future challenges. 

i The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, which sets standards for local 
government accounting and audit.

Page 30



ii Internal Audit terminology for assurance levels given to individual audits by Internal Audit are:
Substantial: There is a sound system of internal control designed to achieve the system 

objectives and this minimises risk.
Reasonable: There is a reasonable system of internal control in place which should ensure 

that system objectives are generally achieved, but some issues have been 
raised which may result in a degree of risk exposure beyond that which is 
considered acceptable.

Limited: The system of internal control designed to achieve the system objectives is 
not sufficient. Some areas are satisfactory but there are an unacceptable 
number of weaknesses which have been identified and the level of non-
compliance and / or weaknesses in the system of internal control puts the 
system objectives at risk.  This was previously known as partial assurance.

None: Fundamental weaknesses have been identified in the system of internal 
control resulting in the control environment being unacceptably weak and 
expose the system objectives to a high degree of risk.  This was previously 
known as limited assurance

iii Internal Audit report recommendations are prioritised as:
1 Urgent Fundamental control issue on which action should be 

taken immediately

2 Important Control issue on which action should be taken at the 
earliest opportunity.

3 Routine Control issue on which action should be taken.

Recommendations are also made to improve operational effectiveness.

iv The Society of Local Authority Chief Executives and Senior Managers.

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



1

South Lakeland District Council
Audit Committee

19 April 2018
Annual Reporting of Operational Risks to Audit 

Committee
PORTFOLIO: Councillor Brenda Gray – Council Organisation and 

People Portfolio Holder

REPORT FROM: Debbie Storr - Director Policy and Resources (Monitoring 
Officer)

REPORT AUTHOR: John Davies – Performance and Risk Officer

WARDS: Not Applicable

FORWARD PLAN: Not Applicable

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1 Members are aware of the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 

risk tolerance.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 It is recommended that Audit Committee:-

(1) note the operational risks which are positioned above the line of 
tolerance as listed in appendix 1 of this report and the mitigations to 
manage them.

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
3.1 Following an internal audit recommendation the Performance and Risk Officer 

reports the operational risks that are above tolerance to Audit Committee on an 
annual basis to ensure that Members are aware of the operational risks which have 
been identified and are being managed. Service Planning includes reviewing 
operational risks for the start of each financial year and the reporting fits in with this 
schedule.

3.2 The Strategic Risk Register is also reported to Audit Committee every 6 months. The 
Strategic Risk Register is currently reviewed by Senior Management Team prior to 
being reported each quarter as part of quarterly performance monitoring and 
reporting arrangements.

3.3 This report asks the Audit Committee to note the operational risks which are 
positioned above the line of tolerance as listed in Appendix 1 to the report and the 
mitigations to manage them.

4.0 CONSULTATION
4.1 The Performance and Risk Officer collates operational risks following risk reviews by 

Operational Managers. The risks which are above tolerance are listed in appendix 1.

Page 33

Item No.8



2

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
5.1 No alternative options – Audit Committee must have sight of operational risks to 

ensure that they are aware and that they are being managed.

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
6.1 Risk Management directly underpins all Council Plan priorities.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS
7.1 Financial and Resources
7.1.1 There are no financial implications associated with reporting operational risks.

7.2 Human Resources
7.2.1 There are no staffing implications associated with reporting operational risks.

7.3 Legal
7.3.1 There are no legal implications associated with reporting operational risks.

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4.1 There are no Health, Social, Economic or Environmental implications associated with 

reporting operational risks.

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?

Yes ☐ No ☒

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.

There are no Health, Social, Economic or 
Environmental implications associated 
with reporting operational risks

7.5 Equality and Diversity
7.5.1 There are no Equality and Diversity implications associated with reporting operational 

risks.

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis?

Yes ☐ No ☒

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.

There are no Equality and Diversity 
implications associated with reporting 
operational risks

7.6 Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required
There is a risk that 
Members are not aware of 
the Council’s ‘above 
tolerance’ Operational 
Risks

Members are not able to 
ensure that risks are 
managed effectively.

Risks impact on services.

Operational Risks are 
reviewed by Operational 
Managers and those 
which are above tolerance 
are reported to Audit 
Committee by the 
Performance and Risk 
Officer.

Page 34



3

CONTACT OFFICERS
Report Author - Report Author – John Davies, Performance and Risk Officer, 01539 733333, 
rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 
Appendix No.
1 Operational Risks

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE
Name of Background 
document

Where it is available

Risk Management Process.

Performance Management 
Framework.

Both documents can be viewed on SLDC Website

Audit Committee updates. Previous Audit Committee updates can be viewed on 
SLDC Website

TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio Holder Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

15/03/18 15/03/18 15/03/18 29/03/18 n/a

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

n/a 19/04/18 n/a 15/03/18 15/03/18
Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

Comms Team

15/03/18 n/a n/a 15/03/18

Page 35

mailto:rj.davies@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/council-documents/council-plan/performance/
http://democracy.southlakeland.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=135


4

Appendix 1

The purpose of this appendix is to present the operational risks that are positioned ‘above the line’ of risk appetite/tolerance. The 
risks are listed by operational service area. 

P
age 36



5

Revenues and Benefits

Risk name Loss of Housing Benefit subsidy – due to audit 
detection of assessment errors or delays, 
additional risk due to software system change 
over

Risk Current 
Position x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Review Date Monthly

Description There is risk because errors and delays occur in 
benefits processing. Where errors or delays 
exceed 0.5% the Council must meet the full 
costs of those errors – in terms of overpaid 
benefit.

Risk Target 
Position x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target Date 01/01/19

Mitigations 1. Dedicated accuracy checking officer established
2. Subsidy error report is monitored monthly
3. Accuracy testing feedback informs staff training
4. Accuracy testing feedback identifies performance issues 
5. Paying Civica for continued access to legacy system

Mitigation Due 
Date

Mitigations in 
place and 
established

History of Risk 
Improvement

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register.
12/03/18: additional risk due to software system change over

Risk Owner Revenues and Benefits Manager

P
age 37



6

Economic Development

Risk 2.
Wi-Fi Rollout – Non delivery 

Description

The Council is currently trying to procure a provider of town centre Wi-Fi for 
the key service centres.  To do this it will require use of CCC assets; SLDC and 
CCC legal team are currently negotiating the terms of this use.   If the correct 
terms cannot be agreed it will not be possible to attract the Market to 
deliver the Town Centre Wi-Fi across South Lakeland.

Current Position of Risk

This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk.

X

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact
Green zone: review annually
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
Review Date:
June 2018  

Target Position of Risk

This risk matrix shows the desired position of 
the risk following the completion of 
mitigations.

XLi
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact
Green zone: review annually
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
Target Date:
June  2018 

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date

1. Organise joint meeting between SLDC 
and CCC legal teams to ensure requirement 
properly communicated 

Underway Gareth Candlin Complete

2. Raise with relevant SLDC and CCC elected 
members to ensure officers are instructed 
of the importance of concluding the 
agreement.

April 2017 Gareth Candlin Complete

History 01/03/2017 – Risk Identified and entered into risk log 

13/03/2018 - Review of risk has identified an increase in likelihood of non-delivery due to legislative changes.

P
age 38



7

of Risk 
Improvement

Risk Owner Gareth Candlin Portfolio Economy and Assets– Graham Vincent 

P
age 39



8

Communications and Customer Relations

Risk name Customer Connect project involves 
major changes and will affect the whole 
team.

Risk current 
position x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Next review date July 2018

Description of 
risk

Staff must adapt and learn new way of 
working which could lead to HR and IR 
issues. Slippage in IT changes.

Risk target 
position

x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target date Dec 2018

Mitigations Training and transformational change programme Mitigation due 
date

In place

History of risk 
improvement

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register.
29/03/18: review indicates no change to likelihood or impact

Risk owner Assistant Director - Performance and Innovation

P
age 40



9

Risk name Lack of capacity in team because of 
pressures caused by Customer Connect

Risk current 
position

x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Next
review date

July 2018

Description of 
risk

Failure to formalise team structure following 
the departure of the Comms Manager to 
ensure that comms remains on track. 
Interim arrangements in place and are 
ongoing.

Risk target 
Position x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target date Dec 2018

Mitigations Monitor and review workloads on a regular basis. Interim arrangements in place. Mitigation Due 
Date

July 2018

History of risk 
improvement

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register.
29/03/18: review indicates similar likelihood and impact for this risk

Risk Owner Assistant Director - Performance and Innovation

P
age 41



10

Shared ICT Service

The ICT Risk Register contains risks related to Cyber Attack. Mitigating controls result in a ‘below risk tolerance’ position for the Strategic Risk ‘Cyber 
Security’.

Without giving away any restricted information, below is a list of the protective controls we have in place to protect the council from Cyber Attacks, viruses 
and malware:

 Scanning of all e-mails for viruses/malware/spam inbound to the council from external sources. This scanning/filtering takes place in two places
o In the cloud, prior to the e-mails being received by the council
o After receipt by the council using a different scanning engine

 Scanning of all e-mails for viruses/malware/spam outbound from the council to external destinations. This scanning/filtering takes place in two places
o Before sending by the council 
o In the cloud, prior to the e-mails being sent to the recipient

 Antivirus/malware protection software installed on all Servers, computers, laptops, phones and tablet devices.

 Central Firewall configured to project the council network from the internet in the following ways:

o All data passing through the firewall from the corporate network to the internet is scanned for viruses/malware
o Prohibited websites are blocked with no access provided from corporate devices, this list of sites is managed by the firewall supplier who are a 

global organisation and are seen as market leaders in Unified Threat Management.  The list is updated automatically on a regular basis
o Firewall detects and protects against unknown attacks using dynamic analysis and provides automated mitigation to stop such attacks the logic 

used is updated regularly by the firewall supplier who are seen as market leaders in Unified Threat Management.
o No direct access to the council network from any external networks, all traffic inbound from external networks is filtered by components 

installed in cordoned off networks known as a Demilitarized Zone, these areas are designed to protect the corporate network from external 
attack

 Corporate Network Password controls are configured as standard as follows:
o Passwords configured to require changing every 42 days

P
age 42



11

o Not permitted to use any password from the previous 20 passwords
o Accounts set to lock out after a defined number of invalid attempts

 Annual IT Health Check performed by ‘Check’ accredited and approved individuals
o This is where ethical hacking takes place on our network and any gaps in the configuration are highlighted and resolved by implementing 

coordinated changes described and documented in a remediation plan

 The Annual check is complemented by the following:
o Quarterly security scanning of devices on the network for all known vulnerabilities
o Comprehensive patch management of desktops and servers where software is updated regularly

 Phones and Tablets
o Only corporate devices used to access the corporate network and data
o All devices protected by Antivirus and Malware protection
o All devices encrypted
o Devices automatically wipe after a defined number of incorrect password attempts
o Password requirements enforced to be as strong as those defined on the corporate network 
o Connectivity from phones/tablets to the corporate network is via the corporate firewall so all data is scanned in transit
o Data from the devices destined to the internet rather than internal corporate network is scanned by a separate product
o Apps installed on corporate phones/tablets are subjected to analysis which highlights potential risks.  Any apps highlighted above a 

configured risk rating are automatically blocked

 Remote VPN Connectivity
o Remote connectivity from Laptops is provided to staff, part of the configuration is the checking for Security Certificates installed onto 

corporate devices, without these certificates connection to the corporate network is not permitted even if a username and password is 
known.

 Staff educated not to connect non-corporate devices to corporate equipment

Author: Shared IT Services Manager Date: 22nd March 2018

P
age 43



12

Partnerships and Organisational Development

Risk name Capacity and skills to deliver Risk 
Current 
Position

X

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Review 
Date

March 2019

Description Capacity and skills to deliver major projects for all services. 
There are unforeseen projects as a result of changes to 
legislation. This increase in workload threatens to reduce the 
organisational support required by all services across the 
council. There is a significant history of extra projects to date 
– this requires reprioritisation and management of workloads.

Capacity to deliver ideas and projects that are not part of 
Council Plan priorities.
Impact of legislation changes brings about new aspirations 
from members

Risk Target 
Position X

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target 
Date

March 2019

Mitigations 1/ Reprioritise work activity on a regular basis at DMT Meetings and 1-1’s
2/ Partnerships and Organisational Development Manager monitors via monthly Portfolio Holder 
meetings
3/ Reprioritise work activity on a regular basis at DMT Meetings and 1-1’s

Mitigation 
Due Date

Mitigations 
are in place

History of Risk 
Improvement

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register.
05/02/18: This risk is within tolerance and requires a review in Quarter Four 2017/18
14/03/18: This risk has been increased to a position above the line of tolerance to reflect the lack of capacity in the team to 
support and deliver major projects. There are long term sickness absence in the team and the inability (candidates not available) 
to recruit part time to those posts.  This is compacted by a number of staff seconded to support other roles in the team so that 
time is spent managing the CC programme. There is also maternity cover about to start ahead of the original scheduled dates. 
In total there is no capacity in the team to deliver projects at their current level until absences are rectified. 

Risk Owner Partnerships and Organisational Development Manager

P
age 44



13

Risk name Changes in Corporate Objectives Risk Current 
Position

X

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Next
Review 
Date

March 2019

Description of risk Requirement for a complete renewal of the Council Plan in 
2018, full district elections in May 2018 and the change in 
Ward structure.

Risk Target 
Position X

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target 
Date

March 2019 

Mitigations 1. Monitor impact of any changes on a regular basis within the team.
2. Change team priorities accordingly

Mitigation 
Due Date

Mitigations in 
place and 
established

History of Risk 
Improvement

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register.
05/02/18: This risk is above tolerance and requires a review each quarter. Next review in Quarter Four 2017/18
14/03/18: Review indicates that this risk remains the same in terms of likelihood and impact for both current and target 
positions. The reasons include the requirement for a complete renewal of the Council Plan, full district elections in May and the 
change in Ward structure.

Risk Owner Partnerships and Organisational Development Manager

P
age 45



14

Financial Services

Risk name Central Government funding differs 
from MTFP

(this risk is a duplicate of Strategic Risk 06  
Medium Term Financial Planning.)

Risk Current 
Position x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Next Review 
Date

n/a

Description of 
risk

Please see Strategic Risk 006/14 - Medium 
Term Financial Planning

Risk Target 
Position

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target Date n/a

Mitigations Please see Strategic Risk 006/14 - Medium Term Financial Planning Mitigation Due 
Date

n/a

History of risk 
improvement

For previous history please see earlier versions of this risk register.
14/03/18: This risk will be archived for the next review of this register as is a duplicate risk of Strategic Risk 06 Medium Term 
Financial Planning. 

Risk Owner Financial Services Manager

P
age 46



15

Legal

Risk name Windermere lake encroachment debt recovery 
does not significantly reduce the amounts 
outstanding.

Risk Current 
Position x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Next Review Date Quarterly

Description of 
risk

Reputational risk to Legal Services. Historically 
there has been insufficient resource for recovery 
on Windermere. Numerous challenges to the 
current square metre methodology have been 
made. Debts require significant Legal, Finance and 
Lambert Smith Hampton work in every case.

Risk Target 
Position

x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact

Target Date April 2020

Mitigations 1. Regular progress reports to senior officers and members
2. Reports to Lake Admin Committee and Audit Committee
3. Regular 1-1 item with Assistant Director Resources

Mitigation Due 
Date

Ongoing - all 
mitigations are 
established

History of risk 
improvement 

For previous history please see earlier versions of this register.

29/03/18: Reviewed.  Significant improvements have been made in relation to this risk.  However, it is considered prudent for the risk to 
remain unchanged until the impact of such improvements has been monitored.

Risk Owner Solicitor to the Council

P
age 47



16

Assets 

Risk 4 – Capital Programme delivery

Description of risk
Failure to meet the financial spend profile of the Capital Programme and 
undertake the required improvements to meet the service need.

Description
Failure to deliver the Capital Scheme may mean failure to achieve additional 
revenue streams, can lead to a deterioration in SLDC’s building portfolio which 
could be a potential Health and Safety risk. Failure to deliver on the Capital 
Programme can lead to a loss of reputation with external partners.

Current Position of Risk
This risk matrix shows the current 
position of the risk.

x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact
Green zone: review annually
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
Review Date:
01.10.18

Target Position of Risk
This risk matrix shows the desired 
position of the risk following the 
completion of mitigations.

x

Li
ke

lih
oo

d

Impact
Green zone: review annually
Blue zone: manage quarterly 
Target Date:
01.04.19

Mitigation Mitigation Progress Mitigation Action Owner Mitigation Due Date

1. All capital projects are outsourced 
through NEPRO or through our property 
service provider. 

On-going. Corporate Asset Manager. On-going.

2. Clear and concise brief provided for all 
projects providing clear objectives with 
timescales.

On-going. Corporate Asset Manager. On-going.

3. Priority given to those projects which 
addresses Health and Safety concerns.

On-going. Corporate Asset Manager. On-going.

4. Projects to be managed in line with SLDC 
project management toolkit, and project 
manager to complete Risk Register for the 
project.

On-going Corporate Asset Manager. On-going.

Risk Owner Sion Thomas Portfolio Assets and Economic Development

P
age 48



17

Street Scene 

One risk around recycling income has recently been escalated from operational level for inclusion on the Strategic Risks Register. 
This risk is ‘Potential reduction in income from the disposal of recyclable materials as a consequence of market changes affected 
by China’s waste policy’. The risk was approved as a Strategic Risk by Senior Management Team on 29/03/18 and is now listed on 
the Strategic Risks Register. The risk is currently positioned below the line of appetite and is an example of good practice in terms 
of risk escalation and communication. 

The following Services are managing risks however there are currently no risks identified as above tolerance:

Community & Leisure, Development Strategy and Housing, Human Resources, Development Management, Environment and 
Housing, Committee Services.P

age 49



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 50



Page 51

Item No.9



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18

External Audit Plan
Year ending 31 March 2018

South Lakeland District Council

28 March 2018

P
age 55

Item
 N

o.10



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 2

Contents

Section Page

1. Introduction & headlines 3

2. Deep business understanding 4

3. Signif icant r isks identif ied 5

4. Reasonably possible r isks identif ied 7

5. Other matters 8

6. Mater iality 9

7. Value for Money arrangements 10

8. Audit logistics, team & audit fees 11

9. Early close 12

10. Independence & non-audit services 13

Appendices

A.    Rev ised ISAs 15

The contents of this report relate only to the matters which have come to our attention, which we believe need to be reported to you as part of our audit planning process. It is not a
comprehensive record of all the relevant matters, which may be subject to change, and in particular we cannot be held responsible toy ou for reporting all of the risks which may affect the

Council or any weaknesses in your internal controls. This report has been prepared solely for y our benefit and should not be quoted in whole or in part without our prior written consent.
We do not accept any responsibility for any loss occasioned to any third party acting, or ref rainingf rom acting on the basis of the content of this report, as this report was not prepared for,

nor intended f or, any other purpose.

Your key Grant Thornton 

team members are:

John Farrar

Associate Director

T:  0161 234 6384

E: john.f arrar@uk.gt.com

Jillian Burrow s

Senior Manager

T: 0161 214 6302

E: jillian.a.burrows@uk.gt.com

Pamela Sw allow e

Executive

T: 0161 953 6910

E: pamela.s.swallowe@uk.gt.com

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales: No.OC307742. Registered office: 30 Finsbury Square, London, EC2A 1AG. A list of members 
is av ailable from our registered office.  Grant Thornton UK LLP is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority. Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant 

Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL and its member firms are not agents 
of , and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions.

P
age 56



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 3

Introduction & headlines
Purpose

This document provides an overview of the planned scope and timing of the statutory

audit of South Lakeland District Counc il (‘the Council’) for those charged w ith

governance.

Respective responsibilities

The National Audit Office (‘the NA O’) has issued a document entitled Code of Audit

Practice (‘the Code’). This summarises w here the responsibilit ies of auditors begin and

end and w hat is expected from the audited body. Our respective responsibilities are

also set in the Terms of Appointment and Statement of Respons ibilit ies issued by

Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA), the body responsible for appointing us as

auditor of South Lakeland District Council. We draw your attention to both of these

documents on the PSAA w ebsite.

Scope of our audit

The scope of our audit is set in accordance w ith the Code and International Standards on

Auditing (ISAs) (UK). We are responsible for forming and expressing an opinion on the:

• f inancial statements (including the Annual Governance Statement) that have been

prepared by management w ith the oversight of those charged w ith governance (the

Audit Committee); and

• Value for Money arrangements in place at the Council for securing economy, eff iciency

and effectiveness in your use of resources.

The audit of the financial statements does not relieve management or the Audit Committee

of your responsibilities. It is the responsibility of the Council to ensure that proper

arrangements are in place for the conduct of its business, and that public money is

safeguarded and proper ly accounted for. We have considered how the Council is fulf illing

these responsibilities.

Our audit approach is based on a thorough understanding of the Council's business and is

risk based.

Significant risks Those risks requiring specif ic audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood of a material f inancial statement error have 

been identif ied as:

• management override of controls

• valuation of property, plant and equipment

• valuation of the pension fund net liability.

We w ill communicate signif icant f indings on these areas as w ell as any other signif icant matters arising from the audit to you in our Audit 

Findings (ISA 260) Report.

Materiality We have determined planning materiality to be £1.325m (PY £0.935m), w hich equates to 2% of prior year gross expenditure. We are 

obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements other than those w hich are ‘clearly trivial’ to those charged w ith governance. 

Clearly trivial has been set at £0.066m (PY £0.047m). 

Value for Money arrangements Our risk assessment regarding your arrangements to secure value for money have identif ied no VFM signif icant risks.

Audit logistics Our interim visits took place in January and March 2018 and our f inal visit w ill take place in June/July 2018. Our key deliverables are this 

Audit Plan and our Audit Findings Report. Our fee for the audit w ill be no less than £55,851 (PY: £55,851) for the Council.

Independence We have complied w ith the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and w e as a f irm, and each covered person, confirm that w e are 

independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the f inancial statements

P
age 57

https://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/terms-of-appointment/


© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 4

Deep business understanding

• We w ill consider your arrangements for managing and reporting your f inancial resources, as part of our w ork in reaching our Value for Money conclusion.

• We w ill consider w hether your f inancial position leads to uncertainty about the going concern assumption and w ill review  any related disclosures in the f inancial statements.

• We w ill keep you informed of changes to the Regulations and any associated changes to f inancial  reporting or public inspection requirements for 2017/18 through on-going

discussions and invitations to our technical update w orkshops.

• As part of our opinion on your f inancial statements, w e w ill consider w hether your f inancial statements reflect the f inancial reporting changes in the 2017/18 CIPFA Code.

• We w ill review  your progress in implementing the recommendations raised in our Audit Findings Report for the 2016/17 audit.

Our response

Key challenges Changes to financial reporting requirements

Accounts and Audit 

Regulations 2015 (the 

Regulations)

Under the 2015 Regulations 

local authorities are required 

to publish their accounts 

along w ith the auditors 

opinion by 31 July 2018.

Changes to the CIPFA 

2017/18 Accounting Code 

CIPFA have introduced other 

minor changes to the 

2017/18 Code w hich confirm 

the going concern basis for 

local authorities, and updates 

for Leases, Service 

Concession arrangements 

and financial instruments.

Financial pressures

Similar to other local authorities, South Lakeland continue to 

look at different w ays to make savings or generate further 

income. As set out in the MTFP, £1.16m of further budget 

reductions are required to set a balanced budget for 

2018/19, rising to £1.21m by 2021/22. 

Future savings are to be made via Customer Connect and 

the latest reported projection w as that £403k of further 

savings w ould be delivered in 2018/19 rising to £828k in 

2019/20 and future years. An eff iciency programme is also 

being developed to assess other areas that could deliver 

savings or additional income. This w ill ensure that robust 

proposals are in place to meet any savings targets above 

the total from the Customer Connect programme.

Civica to Capita Conversion

Whenever a new  system is introduced there are 

risks associated w ith transferring the data that need 

to be carefully managed. Given the high number and 

value of transactions processed through the benefits 

system, an IT migration review  w ill be carried out by 

Business Risk Services. This w ill allow  us to 

evaluate the controls that w ere in place to ensure 

that data has transferred appropriately betw een the 

systems, and consider the post-migration exercise 

including w hether any issues have been identif ied 

that may have an impact on our audit. 

P
age 58



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 5

Significant risks identified

Signif icant risks are defined by professional standards as risks that, in the judgement of the auditor, require special audit consideration because they have a higher risk of material 

misstatement. Such risks often relate to signif icant non-routine transactions and judgmental matters. In identifying risks, audit teams consider the nature of the risk, the potential 

magnitude of misstatement, and its likelihood.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

The revenue cycle includes fraudulent 

transactions

Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a rebuttable presumed risk that revenue 

may be misstated due to the improper recognition of revenue. 

This presumption can be rebutted if the auditor concludes that there 

is no risk of material misstatement due to fraud relating to revenue 

recognition.

Having considered the risk factors set out in ISA240 and the nature

of the revenue streams at the Council, w e have determined that the 

risk of fraud arising from revenue recognition can be rebutted, 

because:

• there is little incentive to manipulate revenue recognition

• opportunities to manipulate revenue recognition are very limited

• the culture and ethical framew orks of local authorities, including

South Lakeland District Council, mean that all forms of fraud are

seen as unacceptable.

Therefore w e do not consider this to be a signif icant risk for South 

Lakeland District Council.

Management over-ride of controls Under ISA (UK) 240 there is a non-rebuttable presumed risk that the 

risk of management over-ride of controls is present in all entities.

The Council faces external scrutiny of its spending, and this could 

potentially place management under undue pressure in terms of 

how  they report performance.

Management over-ride of controls is a risk requiring special audit 

consideration.

We w ill:

• gain an understanding of the accounting estimates, judgements

applied and decisions made by management and consider their

reasonableness

• obtain a full listing of journal entries, identify and test unusual

journal entries for appropriateness

• evaluate the rationale for any changes in accounting policies or

signif icant unusual transactions.

P
age 59



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 6

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Valuation of property, 

plant and equipment
The Council revalues its land and buildings on a rolling basis over four 

years to ensure that carrying value is not materially different from fair 

value. Valuations are undertaken by the Council’s external valuer. 

Additional valuations are undertaken, above and beyond those planned 

as part of the rolling programme, if  these are considered necessary to 

ensure that the carrying value of land and buildings is not materially 

different from current value at the Balance Sheet date. 

The valuation of land and buildings is a key estimate made by 

management in order to produce the f inancial statements. We have 

identif ied this estimate and the assumptions underpinning the estimate 

as a risk w hich requires special audit consideration.

We w ill:

 review  management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the

estimate, the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their

w ork

 consider the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management

experts used

 discuss w ith the valuer the basis on w hich the valuation is carried out and

challenge the key assumptions used

 review  and challenge the information used by the valuer to ensure it is robust

and consistent w ith our understanding

 test revaluations made during the year to ensure they are input correctly into

the Council's asset register

 evaluate the assumptions made by management for those assets not

revalued during the year and how  management has satisfied themselves that

these are not materially different to current value.

Valuation of pension 

fund net liability

The Council's pension fund asset and liability as reflected in its balance 

sheet represent a signif icant estimate in the f inancial statements.

We identif ied the valuation of the pension fund net liability as a risk 

requiring special audit consideration.

We w ill:

 identify the controls put in place by management and the controls established

by the Cumbria Pension Fund to ensure that the pension fund liability is not

materially misstated

 assess w hether these controls w ere implemented as expected and w hether

they are suff icient to mitigate the risk of material misstatement

 evaluate the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary w ho carried

out your pension fund valuation (on behalf of external audit suppliers to local

government, the National Audit Off ice has commissioned an auditor’s expert

to undertake a review  of the actuaries engaged by local government pension

funds, including the Cumbria Pension Fund)

 consider the expert’s f indings and follow -up on any implications for our audit

 undertake procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial

assumptions made

 check the consistency of the pension fund asset and liability and disclosures

in notes to the f inancial statements w ith the actuarial report from your actuary.

Significant risks identified

P
age 60



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 7

Reasonably possible risks identified

Reasonably possible risks (RPRs) are, in the auditor's judgment, other risk areas w hich the auditor has identif ied as an area w here the likelihood of material misstatement cannot be 

reduced to remote, w ithout the need for gaining an understanding of the associated control environment, along w ith the performance of an appropriate level of substantive w ork. The risk 

of misstatement for an RPR is low er than that for a signif icant risk, and they are not considered to be areas that are highly judgmental, or unusual in relation to the day to day activities of 

the business.

Risk Reason for risk identification Key aspects of our proposed response to the risk

Employee remuneration The Council employs around 430 staff. Expenditure on payroll costs 

continue to be a signif icant, material transaction stream. 

Given the large number of transactions associated w ith the Council’s 

payroll there is a risk that payroll expenditure could be understated. 

We therefore identif ied completeness of payroll expenses as a risk 

requiring particular audit attention.

We w ill:

• update our understanding of the Council's processes and the

associated controls in place to ensure that Counc il employees

receive the correct pay each month and that the amounts paid

are completely and accurately recorded in the General Ledger

and reported as part of the financial statements

• test the year-end reconciliation of the payroll system to the

general ledger

• test for reasonableness any accruals posted to the Council’s

ledger to reflect amounts due to employees but not paid at the

year-end.

Operating expenses The Council purchases goods and services from a range of 

suppliers. At the year-end management uses judgement to estimate 

the value of goods or services consumed w hich have not yet been 

paid for so that w here an invoice has not been received appropriate 

accruals can be reflected in the Balance Sheet. This forms part of 

the closedow n process for both capital and revenue transactions and 

the use of estimates is required to enable the Council to close its 

ledgers promptly. 

Given the use of estimation techniques, w e identif ied completeness 

of non-pay expenditure as a risk requiring particular audit attention. 

We w ill:

• update out understanding of the Counc il's process for initiating,

processing, recording and reporting accounts payable invoices

and other types of non-pay expenditure incurred by the Council

• test the year-end reconciliation of the accounts payable system

to the general ledger

• assess the accruals process established by management and

consider w hether it is suff iciently comprehensive to ensure year-

end accruals are not materially misstated

• test a sample of year-end accruals and creditor balances in the

year-end balance sheet to confirm these accurately reflect year-

end liabilities

• test a sample of payments made in April 2018 to confirm the

associated invoices have been accounted for in the correct

f inancial year.

P
age 61



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 8

Other matters

Other work

In addition to our responsibilities under the Code of Practice, w e have a number of other

audit responsibilities, as follow s:

• We carry out w ork to satisfy ourselves that disclosures made in your Annual

Governance Statement are in line w ith the guidance issued and consistent w ith our

know ledge of the Council.

• We w ill read your Narrative Statement and check that it is consistent w ith the

f inancial statements on w hich w e give an opinion and that the disclosures included in

it are in line w ith the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice.

• We carry out w ork on your consolidation schedules for the Whole of Government

Accounts process in accordance w ith NAO group audit instructions.

• We consider our other duties under the Act and the Code, as and w hen required,

including:

• giving electors the opportunity to raise questions about your 2017/18

financial statements, consider and decide upon any objections received in

relation to the 2017/18 f inancial statements

• issue of a report in the public interest

• making a w ritten recommendation to the Council, copied to the Secretary of

State.

• We certify completion of our audit.

Other material balances and transactions

Under International Standards on Audit ing, " irrespective of the assessed risks of mater ial

misstatement, the auditor shall des ign and perform substantive procedures for each

material c lass of transactions, account balance and disclosure". All other mater ial

balances and transaction streams w ill therefore be audited. How ever, the procedures w ill

not be as extensive as the procedures adopted for the risks identif ied in this report.

Going concern

As auditors, w e are required to “obtain suff icient appropr iate audit evidence about the

appropriateness of management's use of the going concern assumption in the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements and to conclude w hether there is

a material uncertainty about the entity's ability to continue as a going concern” (ISA (UK)

570). We w ill review management's assessment of the going concern assumption and

evaluate the disclosures in the financial statements.

P
age 62



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 9

Materiality

The concept of materiality

The concept of materiality is fundamental to the preparation of the financial statements

and the audit process and applies not only to the monetary misstatements but also to

disclosure requirements and adherence to acceptable accounting practice and

applicable law . Misstatements, including omissions, are considered to be material if

they, individually or in the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the

economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.

Materiality for planning purposes

We propose to calculate financial statement mater iality based on a proportion of the

gross expenditure of the Council for the financial year. We have determined planning

materiality (the financial statements materiality determined at the planning stage of the

audit) to be £1.325m, w hich equates to 2% of your prior year gross expenditure. We

design our procedures to detect errors in specif ic accounts at a low er level of precision.

We reconsider planning materiality if, during the course of our audit engagement, w e

become aw are of facts and circumstances that w ould have caused us to make a

different determination of planning materiality

Matters we will report to the Audit Committee

Whilst our audit procedures are designed to identify misstatements w hich are material to

our opinion on the financial statements as a w hole, w e nevertheless report to the Audit

Committee any unadjusted misstatements of lesser amounts to the extent that these are

identif ied by our audit w ork. Under ISA 260 (UK) ‘Communication w ith those charged

w ith governance’, w e are obliged to report uncorrected omissions or misstatements

other than those w hich are ‘clearly tr ivial’ to those charged w ith governance. ISA 260

(UK) defines ‘clearly tr ivial’ as matters that are clearly inconsequential, w hether taken

indiv idually or in aggregate and w hether judged by any quantitative or qualitative

criteria. In the context of the Council, w e propose that an individual difference could

normally be considered to be clearly trivial if it is less than £66,000.

If management have corrected material misstatements identif ied during the course of

the audit, w e will consider w hether those corrections should be communicated to the

Audit Committee to assist it in fulf illing its governance responsibilities.

Forecast gross expenditure

£m

(PY: £51.4m)

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

Materiality

Prior year gross expenditure

£66.262m

Materiality

£1.325m

Whole f inancial 

statements materiality

Triviality

£0.066m

Misstatements reported 

to the Audit Committee

P
age 63



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 10

Setting Materiality – Materiality for Sensitive Items 

Identifying transactions requiring a separate materiality level

Alongside calculating an overall materiality level to inform our audit of the financial

statements, auditing standards require auditors to determine separate, low er, materiality

levels w here there are 'particular classes of transactions, account balances or

disclosures for w hich misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality for the financial

statements as a w hole could reasonably be expected to influence the economic

decisions of users'.

We have determined that a separate materiality level should be adopted in the follow ing

areas:

Related party transactions - the Council conducts its business using public funds. The 

Related Party disclosures ensures that the Council discloses in full any transactions that 

have occurred w ith related parties.  This ensures that the Council is open about w ho it 

does business w ith and counters any allegations or suspicion of nepotism on the part of 

management or TCWG.

Disclosures of officers' remuneration and salary bandings in the notes to the 

financial statements - due to public interest in these disclosures and the statutory

requirement for them to be made.

Determining materiality level for sensitive items

Materiality for the sens itive items has been calculated on a similar basis to that used for

the final statements, i.e. a proportion of the total value of the disclosure. In our view s

error in the disclosure below the materiality levels quoted w ould not impact on

economics decisions taken by users of the financial statements. For both of the areas

highlighted above, w e w ill review the completeness of the disclosures in the draft

f inancial statements based on our know ledge of the Council’s affairs. We w ill also

review the mater iality levels proposed on receipt of the draft statements and alter these

if this is considered necessary.

Proposed Materiality Levels for Sensitive Items  

Area of the Accounts Proposed Materiality 

Related Party Transactions £5,000 (approximately 2% of total 

related party transactions in the 

2016/17 audited statements)

Senior Off icer Remuneration £13,000 (approximately 2% of total 

senior off icer remuneration in the 

2016/17 audited statements)

P
age 64



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 11

Value for Money arrangements

Background to our VFM approach

The NAO issued its guidance for auditors on Value for Money w ork for 2017/18 in

November 2017. The guidance states that for local government bodies, auditors are

required to give a conclusion on w hether the Council has proper arrangements in place.

The guidance identif ies one single criterion for auditors to evaluate:

“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys

resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

This is supported by three sub-criteria, as set out below :

Significant VFM risks

Those risks requiring specif ic audit consideration and procedures to address the likelihood 

that proper arrangements are not in place at the Council to deliver value for money.

Informed 

decision 

making

Sustainable 

resource 

deployment

Working 

with partners 

& other third 

parties

Value for 

Money 

arrangements 

criteria

We have not identif ied any signif icant risks from our initial risk assessment. We w ill continue 

our review  of your arrangements, including review ing your Annual Governance Statement, 

before w e issue our auditor's report.

P
age 65



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 12

Audit logistics, team & audit fees

Audit fees

The planned audit fees are no less than £55,851 (PY: £55,851) for the f inancial statements 

audit and £7,552 for grant certif ication. Our fees for grant certif ication cover only housing 

benefit subsidy certif ication, w hich falls under the remit of Public Sector Audit 

Appointments Limited.

In setting your fee, w e have assumed that the scope of the audit, and the Council and its 

activities, do not signif icantly change.

Our requirements

To ensure the audit is delivered on time and to avoid any additional fees, w e have detailed 

our expectations and requirements in the follow ing section ‘Early Close’. If  the 

requirements detailed overleaf are not met, w e reserve the right to postpone our audit visit 

and charge fees to reimburse us for any additional costs incurred.

John Farrar, Engagement Lead

As your Engagement Lead, John is responsible for the overall 

quality of the audit and is the key point of contact for your Chief 

Finance Off icer.

Jillian Burrows, Audit Manager

Jillian assists the Engagement Leader through detailed 

involvement in control and supervision of audit w ork. Jillian is the 

key point of contact for your f inance team.

Pamela Swallowe, Audit Incharge

Pamela is responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the audit, and 

the quality of the audit documentation.

Planning and

risk assessment 

Interim audit

January and 

March 2018

Year end audit

June/July 2018

Audit

committee

19 April 2018

Audit

committee

25 July 2018

Audit

committee

Date TBA

Audit 

Findings 

Report

Audit 

Opinion

Audit 

Plan
Annual 

Audit 

Letter

P
age 66



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 13

Early close

Our requirements 

To minimise the risk of a delayed audit or additional audit fees being incurred, you need to 

ensure that you:

• produce draft f inancial statements of good quality by the deadline you have agreed w ith

us, including all notes, the narrative report and the Annual Governance Statement

• ensure that good quality w orking papers are available at the start of the audit, in

accordance w ith the w orking paper requirements schedule that w e have shared w ith

you

• ensure that the agreed data reports are available to us at the start of the audit and are

reconciled to the values in the accounts, in order to facilitate our selection of samples

• ensure that all appropriate staff are available on site throughout (or as otherw ise

agreed) the planned period of the audit

• respond promptly and adequately to audit queries.

In return, w e w ill ensure that:

• the audit runs smoothly w ith the minimum disruption to your staff

• you are kept informed of progress through the use of an issues tracker and w eekly

meetings during the audit

• w e are available to discuss issues w ith you prior to and during your preparation of the

f inancial statements.

Meeting the early close timeframe

Bringing forw ard the statutory date for publication of audited local government 

accounts to 31 July this year, across the w hole sector, is a signif icant challenge 

for local authorities and auditors alike. For authorities, the time available to 

prepare the accounts is curtailed, w hile, as auditors w e have a shorter period to 

complete our w ork and face an even more signif icant peak in our w orkload than 

previously.

We have carefully planned how  w e can make the best use of the resources 

available to us during the f inal accounts period. As w ell as increasing the overall 

level of resources available to deliver audits, w e have focused on:

• bringing forw ard as much w ork as possible to interim audits

• starting w ork on f inal accounts audits as early as possible, by agreeing w hich

authorities w ill have accounts prepared signif icantly before the end of May

• seeking further eff iciencies in the w ay w e carry out our audits

• w orking w ith you to agree detailed plans to make the audits run smoothly,

including early agreement of audit dates, w orking paper and data

requirements and early discussions on potentially contentious items.

We are satisfied that, if  all these plans are implemented, w e w ill be able to 

complete your audit and those of our other local government clients in suff icient 

time to meet the earlier deadline. 

Client responsibilities

Where individual clients do not deliver to the timetable agreed, w e need to ensure 

that this does not impact on audit quality or absorb a disproportionate amount of 

time, thereby disadvantaging other clients. We w ill therefore conduct audits in line 

w ith the timetable set out in audit plans (as detailed on page 11). Where the 

elapsed time to complete an audit exceeds that agreed due to a client not 

meetings its obligations w e w ill not be able to maintain a team on site. Similarly, 

w here additional resources are needed to complete the audit due to a client not 

meeting their obligations w e are not able to guarantee the delivery of the audit by 

the statutory deadline. Such audits are unlikely to be re-started until very close to, 

or after the statutory deadline. In addition, it is highly likely that these audits w ill 

incur additional audit fees.

P
age 67



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 14

Independence & non-audit services

Auditor independence

Ethical Standards and ISA (UK) 260 require us to give you timely disclosure of all signif icant facts and matters that may bear upon the integrity, objectivity and independence of the f irm 

or covered persons. relating to our independence. We encourage you to contact us to discuss these or any other independence issues w ith us. We w ill also discuss w ith you if  w e make 

additional signif icant judgements surrounding independence matters.

We confirm that there are no signif icant facts or matters that impact on our independence as auditors that w e are required or w ish to draw  to your attention. We have complied w ith the 

Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard and w e as a f irm, and each covered person, confirm that w e are independent and are able to express an objective opinion on the 

f inancial statements. Further, w e have complied w ith the requirements of the National Audit Office’s Auditor Guidance Note 01 issued in December 2016 w hich sets out supplementary 

guidance on ethical requirements for auditors of local public bodies. 

We confirm that w e have implemented policies and procedures to meet the requirements of the Ethical Standard. For the purposes of our audit w e have made enquiries of all Grant 

Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. 

Non-audit services

No non-audit services w ere identif ied.

Any changes and full details of all fees charged for audit related and non-audit related services by Grant Thornton UK LLP and by Grant Thornton International Limited netw ork 

member Firms w ill be included in our Audit Findings report at the conclusion of the audit.

P
age 68



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18

Appendices

A. Revised ISAs

P
age 69



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18 16

Appendix A:  Revised ISAs

Detailed below  is a summary of the key changes impacting the auditor’s report for audits of f inancial statement for periods c ommencing on or after 17 June 2016.

Section of the auditor's report Description of the requirements

Conclusions relating to going concern We w ill be required to conclude and report w hether:

• the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting is appropriate

• the directors have disclosed identif ied material uncertainties that may cast signif icant doubt about the Council’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

Other information We w ill be required to include a section on other information w hich includes:

• responsibilities of management and auditors regarding other information

• a statement that the opinion on the f inancial statements does not cover the other information unless required by law  or regulation

• reporting inconsistencies or misstatements w here identif ied

Additional responsibilities for directors 

and the auditor

We w ill be required to include the respective responsibilities for directors and us, as auditors, regarding going concern.

Format of the report The format of the report w ill change and, in particular, the opinion section w ill appear f irst, follow ed by the basis of opinion section.

P
age 70



© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council  |  2017/18

© 2018 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights reserved.

‘Grant Thornton’ refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member 
firms, as the context requires.

Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a 
separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one 
another and are not liable for one another’s acts or omissions. 

grantthornton.co.uk

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 72



South Lakeland District Council
Audit Committee

19th April 2018
Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor - Assistant Director Resources & 
Section 151 Officer

REPORT AUTHORS: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager (Director, 
TIAA Limited)

WARDS: Corporate Issue

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1. This report provides a summary of the progress against the Internal Audit 

Annual Plan to date in 2017/18. It provides the Committee with assurance 
through the individual internal audit reports for work carried out to date. Internal 
Audit has also validated the status of the implementation of previous internal 
audit recommendations. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note:

 The progress achieved in 2017/18 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1. 

 The attached audit reports at Appendix 2.

 The status of outstanding recommendations contained in the follow up 
report at Appendix 3. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with 

the 1972 Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 
require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS).

3.2 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the 
Council’s senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of 
governance, risk management and internal control.

Page 73

Item No.11



3.3 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control 
systems and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately 
managed and that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the 
system of internal control and should set in place policies and procedures to 
ensure that controls are operating effectively. 

4. PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2017/18 INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN
4.1  The Internal Audit Plan was approved by the Committee in April 2017. 
4.2 The progress report at Appendix 1 provides the Committee with a summary of 

the position as at March 2018. The executive summaries for each review are 
included at Appendix 2.  

5. AUDIT REPORTS COMPLETED IN THE PERIOD
5.1 Appendix 2 contains the executive summaries of the two audit reports 

completed in the period:

 Performance Monitoring; and

 Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance.
6. FOLLOW UP OF INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS
6.1 TIAA has assessed the extent to which previous internal audit 

recommendations have been implemented. The report at Appendix 3 illustrates 
progress.

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

require that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance 
processes, taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards 
(PSIAS).

8. LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements 

for governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of 
the Council’s strategic priorities. 

9. IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Financial and Resources

There are no direct financial implications to this report.

9.2 Human Resources

9.2.1 There are no direct human resource implications to this report.

9.3 Legal

9.3.1 There are no direct legal implications to this report.

Page 74



9.4 Social, Economic and Environmental

9.4.1 There are no direct social, economic or environmental implications to this 
report.

9.5 Equality and Diversity

9.5.1 There are no direct equality and diversity implications to this report.

9.6 Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required

The Council does not 
comply with legislative 
requirements as laid out 
under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2011 

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the 
internal control 
environment.  

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter.

CONTACT OFFICER
Report Author: Peter Harrison 

TIAA Limited 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No.

1 Internal Audit Progress Report

2

Audit Reports – Executive Summaries.

2a. Performance Monitoring.
2b. Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance.

3 Follow Up Report

Page 75



TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio 
Holder

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

31/03/2018

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

19/04/2018 31/03/2018 03/04/18

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

  

Page 76



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 1

Internal Audit

APPENDIX 1

South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 

2017/18

P
age 77



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 2

INTRODUCTION

1. This summary report provides the Audit Committee with an update on the progress of our work at South Lakeland District Council as at 31st March 2018. The report 
is based on internal audit work carried out by TIAA and management representations that have been received during the period since the last meeting of the Audit 
Committee.

PROGRESS AGAINST THE 2017/18 ANNUAL PLAN

2. Our progress against the Annual Plan for 2017/18 is set out in Appendix A.

AUDITS COMPLETED SINCE THE LAST REPORT TO COMMITTEE

3. The table below sets out details of audits carried out since the previous meeting of the Audit Committee.

Report history Number of Recommendations

Review Evaluation Draft 
issued

Responses 
Received Final issued 1 2 3 OE

Performance Monitoring Reasonable 27/03/2018 28/03/2018 31/03/2018 - 1 - -

Compliance with the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance

Reasonable 21/01/2018 22/02/2018 31/03/2018 - 4 - -

CHANGES TO THE ANNUAL PLAN 2017/18

4. There are no proposed changes to the annual plan at this stage. The high level scopes of the 2017/18 plan are set out at Appendix B. 

FRAUDS/IRREGULARITIES

5. We have not been advised of any frauds or irregularities that require the involvement of internal audit in the period since the last summary report was issued.

PROGRESS ACTIONING PRIORITY 1 RECOMMENDATIONS

6. We  have made no Priority 1 recommendations (i.e. fundamental control issue on which action should be taken immediately).  

P
age 78



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 3

RESPONSIBILITY/DISCLAIMER

7. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior written consent. 
The matters raised in this report not necessarily a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be made. No 
responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither owes nor accepts any duty 
of care to any other party who may receive this report and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever nature, which is caused by 
their reliance on our report.

P
age 79



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 4

Appendix A
Progress against the Annual Plan for 2017/18

System Days Current Status Comments Date of Audit Committee

Creditor Payments 10 Final report issued Reasonable Assurance September 2017

Licensing – Premises and Clubs 10 Final report issued Limited Assurance September 2017

Development Control 20 Final report issued Reasonable Assurance September 2017

Insurance 10 Final report issued Reasonable Assurance December 2017

Building Control 20 Final report issued Substantial Assurance December 2017

ICT Disaster Recovery 5 Final report issued Reasonable Assurance December 2017

Payroll 15 Final report issued Substantial Assurance December 2017

Performance Monitoring 10 Final report issued Reasonable Assurance March 2017

Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance

10 Final report issued Reasonable Assurance March 2017

Lake Services – Moorings and Encroachments 10 Draft report issued July 2018

Awarding of Grants 10 Site work completed July 2018

Council Tax 20 To be commenced in April 2018 New Revenues and Benefits 
system implemented.

July 2018

Asset Management 10 To be commenced in April 2018 July 2018

Follow Up 10 Each meeting

KEY: 
= To be commenced
= Site work commenced
= Draft report issued
= Final report issued

P
age 80



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 5

Appendix B

Annual Plan – 2017/18

Audit Type Days Scope

Performance Monitoring Assurance 10 The review will consider the arrangements in place for measuring and reporting 
performance across the Council. This will include the reporting of KPIs, delivery of Service 
Plans and delivery of the Council Plan.

Compliance with the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance

Compliance 10 The review will assess compliance with selected elements of the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance to assess the extent the Council can demonstrate that it complies. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key governance audits.

Awarding of Grants Assurance 10 The importance of ensuring that the awarding of grants aligns with council priorities, are 
supported by a robust business case and do not breach any rules on state aid is illustrated 
by recent events involving Bolton Metropolitan Borough Council. The review will consider 
the process for authorising and awarding grants, including the gate-keeping processes that 
ensure the awarding of grants does not breach any rules.    

ICT Disaster Recovery Assurance 5 Organisations are increasingly reliant on ICT systems for everyday operations and service 
delivery. The review will consider the arrangements in place to deal with a loss of service 
and how the restoring of service is to be managed.

Payroll Assurance 15 Payroll represents a significant expenditure stream for the Council. The review will include 
travel and subsistence claims and the treatment of contractors/consultants in light of recent 
changes in IR35 requirements. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits. 

Creditor Payments Assurance 10 The review will assess the arrangements in place for processing creditor payments, 
including the process of authorisation and the measures in place to guard against internal 
and external fraud.
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits.

P
age 81



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 6

Audit Type Days Scope

Council Tax Assurance 20 Council Tax represents a significant source of revenue for the Council. The review will look 
at the end-to-end process covering setting, discounts, billing, income collection, recovery 
action, write-offs and reporting. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits.

Insurance Assurance 10 South Lakeland District Council is required to have appropriate levels of insurance cover 
in place to mitigate against insurable risks, or has explicitly determined those areas where 
it does not consider it needs cover. The review will look at the process of procuring 
insurance cover and the levels required, as well as how it handles insurance claims and 
takes mitigating actions to reduce the likelihood of insurance claims arising. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits.

Asset Management Assurance 10 The objective of the audit is to seek assurance that controls and procedures are effective 
and ensure that all land and property assets are identified and recorded, valuations are 
made in accordance with Accounting Standards and that the accounts accurately reflect 
the value of identified assets. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key system audits.

Lake Services – Moorings and 
Encroachments

Assurance 10 Moorings and encroachments represent a valuable income stream for the Council. The 
review will consider the process in place for setting fees and charges, service provision, 
enforcement and income collection. 

Licensing – Premises and Clubs Assurance 10 The review will cover: dealing with applications and renewals; whether activities are 
appropriately licensed in accordance with relevant legislation; whether licensed activities 
are monitored to ensure compliance with appropriate conditions; that enforcement action 
is undertaken as necessary and in accordance with relevant legislation and/or best practice 
guidance; and that accurate and appropriate records are maintained.
This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 
Committee requested coverage. 

Development Control Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that its planning function 

P
age 82



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18

Page 7

Audit Type Days Scope

meets its service and enforcement obligations. This review will also consider the transition 
of planning responsibility following the expansion of the national parks. 
This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 
Committee requested coverage.

Building Control Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place to ensure that its building control 
function meets its service and enforcement obligations. This review will also consider the 
transition of planning responsibility following the expansion of the national parks. 
This review will provide assurance in one of the key areas of compliance that the Audit 
Committee requested coverage.

Follow Up Follow Up 10 The review will provide an independent update on the implementation of internal audit 
recommendations and their current status. Follow up work will be on-going throughout the 
year and incorporate the recommendations made by the previous internal audit provider. 

Audit Management 20 This includes overall contract management, attendance at Audit Committee, planning and 
reporting, including the Internal Audit Annual Report and opinion for 2016/17. 
It also includes attendance at SMT and other groups/forums as required, ad-hoc 
management advice and support relating to risk, internal control and governance.  

Total days 190

P
age 83



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 84



Internal Audit 

April 2018 FINAL 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Performance Monitoring 

2017/18 

Appendix 2a

P
age 85



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Performance Monitoring  2017/18 

 

  

 Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 The Council has a clear, comprehensive Performance Management 
Framework, available on its website, which includes performance 
monitoring. 

 Performance monitoring statistics were seen to be up-to-date and 
performance measures properly aligned with Council priorities. 

 Written procedures to underpin current performance monitoring 
arrangements would be useful in succession planning and establishing 
ownership of key processes. 

 

RATIONALE AND SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review considered the arrangements in place for measuring and reporting 
performance across the Council, including the reporting of KPIs, delivery of Service 
Plans and delivery of the Council Plan. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 1 0 0 
 

P
age 86



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Performance Monitoring  2017/18 

 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 

 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed It was noted that there is an overarching 
Data Quality Policy. However, there are 
no specific written procedures relating 
the Officer roles that are involved in 
Performance Monitoring. Such 
procedures would be useful in 
succession planning, as well as to 
establish ownership of key processes. 

Written procedures be established 
to reflect current performance 
monitoring arrangements and 
updated as required. 

2 Written procedures are to be 
established to reflect current 
performance monitoring 
arrangements – to complete for 
Quarter One 2018/19 reporting. 
Written procedures will then be 
updated as required on an on-going 
basis. 

30/06/2018 
 
 
 
 

Performance 
and Risk 
Officer 
 
 

 

P
age 87



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Performance Monitoring 2017/18 

 

  

 Page 3 

 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified. 

 

 

P
age 88



Internal Audit 

April 2018 FINAL 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate 
Governance Arrangements 

2017/18 

Appendix 2b

P
age 89



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance Arrangements 2017/18 
 

  

 Page 1 

 

Executive Summary 
 

OVERALL ASSURANCE ASSESSMENT OVERALL CONCLUSION 

 

 The Council was seen to be compliant with the provisions of Chapter Six 
of the CIPFA Framework: The Principles of Good Governance – 
Application. 

 The adopted methodology was seen to be largely compliant with Chapter 
Five of the CIPFA Guidance: Schedule to Assist in Putting the Principles 
into Practice. 

 The Council has developed an action plan to address areas where it has 
assessed that compliance with the Local Code could be improved. 

 As a result, the Council was seen to have robust procedures in place and 
the recommendations raised are merely to further streamline the existing 
procedures. 

 

RATIONALE AND SCOPE ACTION POINTS 

The review assessed compliance with selected elements of the Local Code of 
Corporate Governance to assess the extent the Council can demonstrate that it 
complies. This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme of key 
governance audits. 

Urgent Important Routine Operational 

0 4 0 0 
 

P
age 90



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance Arrangements 2017/18 
 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 2 
 

Management Action Plan - Priority 1, 2 and 3 Recommendations 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

1 Directed Paragraph 5.3 of the Guidance 
suggests that self-assessment be 
performed against each of the 
Guidance's Examples of Behaviours 
and Actions. The Council, however has 
self-assessed its compliance against 
each of its own Local Code sub-
principles. There is therefore an 
increased risk that suggested examples 
of behaviours and actions are not 
properly incorporated into the Local 
Code. 

To evidence greater alignment with 
the Guidance, self-assessment be 
made against each of the 
Guidance's suggested Examples of 
Behaviours and Actions, rather than 
(or as well as) against the adopted 
sub-principles of its Local Code. 

2 Agreed. The assessment process 
will be amended to reflect the 2018 
assessment.  

31/03/2018 Financial 
Services 
Manager 

P
age 91



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance Arrangements 2017/18 
 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 3 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

2 Directed It was noted that the Responsible 
Officer was on several occasions stated 
as being the Constitution. Whilst the 
Constitution may indeed contain 
provisions to ensure that the adopted 
sub-principles are effected, it should not 
in itself be stated as the Responsible 
Officer as there is then an increased risk 
of lack of proper ownership of the sub-
principle. Furthermore, the Responsible 
Officer was otherwise stated to be the 
name of the Officer, rather than the 
Officer's post. Again this could give rise 
to a lack of ownership should the Officer 
move post or leave. 

The Responsible Officer for each 
adopted sub-principle in the Local 
Code be referenced in all cases to 
the Officer's post, rather than to the 
Officer's name or a reference to the 
Constitution. 

3 Agreed 31/03/2018 Financial 
Services 
Manager 

3 Directed Testing revealed that the spreadsheet 
has not been updated to reflect the 
proposed changes in the adopted sub-
principles of the Local Code that were 
presented to Committee or Cabinet. 

The spreadsheet that is used to 
evidence compliance with the Local 
Code be updated to reflect the 
proposed changes to the Local 
Code that were presented to the 
Audit Committee and subsequently 
to Cabinet in December 2017. 

2 Agreed 31/03/2018 Financial 
Services 
Manager 

P
age 92



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance Arrangements 2017/18 
 

            
      PRIORITY GRADINGS      

1 URGENT Fundamental control issue on which 
action should be taken immediately.  2 IMPORTANT Control issue on which action should 

be taken at the earliest opportunity.  3 ROUTINE Control issue on which action should be 
taken. 

          Page 4 
 

Rec. Risk Area Finding Recommendation Priority Management 
Comments 

Implementation 
Timetable 

(dd/mm/yy) 

Responsible 
Officer 

(Job Title) 

4 Compliance For each of the Framework's seven 
core principles, the Guidance provides 
several behaviours and actions relating 
to that principle that demonstrate good 
governance in practice. Testing 
revealed, however, that in several 
instances the Council had mapped a 
behaviour and action that related to one 
principle, to a sub-principle of its Local 
Code that pertained to a different 
principle. A fundamental point of the 
mapping exercise is that the mapping of 
each behaviour and action for a given 
principle can only be mapped to a sub-
principle in the Local Code that pertains 
to that given principle. 

The mapping of the Guidance 
behaviours and actions that 
demonstrate good governance in 
practice be mapped only to sub-
principles in the Local Code that 
pertain to the same principle to 
which the behaviour and action 
relate. 

2 The mapping and the LCoG will be 
reviewed and updated to ensure it 
meets the framework and guidance. 
  

Audit Committee 
19/04/2018  

Council 22/05/2018 

Financial 
Services 
Manager 

 

P
age 93



 

South Lakeland District Council 

Assurance Review of Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance Arrangements 2017/18 
 

  

 Page 5 
 

Operational Effectiveness Matters 
 

Ref Risk Area Item Management 
Comments 

No Operational Effectiveness Matters have been identified. 

 

P
age 94



Internal Audit

March 2017 FINAL

APPENDIX 3

South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review

2017/18

P
age 95



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 1

Executive Summary 
INTRODUCTION

1. This follow up review by TIAA established the management action that has been taken in respect of recommendations arising from the internal audit reviews listed 
below at South Lakeland District Council. The review was carried out in March 2018.

Review Year

Follow Up November 2017 2017/18

Capital Investment 2016/17

Digital Innovation 2016/17

Flood Resilience Grants 2016/17

Main Accounting Systems 2016/17

National Non-Domestic Rates 2016/17

Creditor Payments 2017/18

Development Control 2017/18

Disaster Recovery 2017/18

Insurance 2017/18

Licensing – Premises and Clubs 2017/18

Payroll 2017/18

P
age 96



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 2

KEY FINDINGS

2. The follow up review considered whether the management action taken addresses the control issues that gave rise to the recommendations. The implementation of 
these recommendations can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss. From the work carried out the following evaluations 
of the progress of the management actions taken to date have been identified. 

Status Progress in implementing recommendation Number of recommendations

Outstanding The recommendation has not yet been implemented but is still on target to meet its target date. 4

Outstanding Implementation is in progress but the original target date has not been met. 10

Outstanding There is no tangible evidence that the recommendation is being progressed. -

Completed The recommendation has been implemented and is now considered closed. 50

3. This review identifies that implementation remains by and large on track; although there has been some slippage, a significant number of recommendations have 
been implemented.   

SCOPE AND LIMITATIONS OF THE REVIEW

4. The review considered the progress made in implementing the recommendations made in the previous internal audit reports and to establish the extent to which 
management has taken the necessary actions to address the control issues that gave rise to the internal audit recommendations.

5. The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all 
strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, 
although the audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control 
may not be proof against collusive fraud

6. For the purposes of this review reliance was placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to staff and to accounting records and transactions and 
to ensure the authenticity of these documents.

RELEASE OF REPORT

7. The table below sets out the history of this report.

Date report issued: 1st April 2018

P
age 97



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 3

Detailed Report 

FOLLOW UP

8. Management representations were obtained on the action taken to address the recommendations. Only limited testing has been carried out to confirm these 
management representations. The following matters were identified in considering the recommendations that have not been fully implemented:

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS REMAIN OUTSTANDING

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

1. Bereavement 
Services

Management should assure 
themselves that efficiencies 
relating to future service 
planning opportunities have 
been fully explored and 
actions identified and 
progressed as appropriate.

2 Fees and charges for this 
service area are reviewed 
annually. Emerging best 
practice and service 
enhancements are 
considered including 
alternative burial options in 
light of customer need and 
appropriate legislation at the 
time. These will additionally 
be considered in the drafting 
of the Parks and Open 
Spaces Strategy. 

Community and 
Leisure 
Manager/ 
Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer / 
Bereavement 
Services Officer
Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services

31/12/2016 30/06/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 Due to significant issues 
with two other large 
projects within the team 
(Nobles Rest and 
Millerground) the Parks 
and Open Spaces 
Strategy has been 
delayed until April 2018.  
It is planned to advertise 
for a consultant by end of 
April 2018.

2. Bereavement 
Services

Management should ensure 
that adequate arrangements 
are in place to review and 
assess the Services future 
planning arrangements.  This 
could include ensuring 
provision can be maintained, 
identifying ways of improving 
the service and possible cost 
reductions for the Council.

1 This will form part of the 
Parks and Open Spaces 
Strategy that is to be 
produced by a consultant.

Principal 
Community 
Spaces Officer
Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services

31/12/2016 30/06/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 Due to significant issues 
with two other large 
projects within the team 
(Nobles Rest and 
Millerground) the Parks 
and Open Spaces 
Strategy has been 
delayed until April 2018.  
It is planned to advertise 
for a consultant by end of 
April 2018.

P
age 98



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 4

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

3. General IT 
Controls

All system users should be 
requested to complete a 
declaration to confirm their 
receipt, understanding of and 
compliance to the IT 
Acceptable Use Policy. 
These declarations should be 
retained. Consideration may 
also be given to the 
automation of this declaration 
through the network log on 
process.

2 All new staff read and sign 
the appropriate policies prior 
to being given access to the 
council network - we haven't 
requested all users re-sign as 
yet because the policies still 
need to be reviewed and 
updated. 

IT Services 
Manager
Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation

30/09/2016 30/06/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 The E-learning package 
has been procured and 
implemented and is in the 
Beta testing stage. There 
is likely to be a delay on 
the go live as the system 
administrator is going on 
maternity leave and there 
is currently being a hand 
over of knowledge to new 
members of staff. The 
planned aim for e-
learning packages to be 
available is May/June 
2018.

4. Data 
Assurance

An information asset 
inventory detailing the types 
of confidential, personal and 
sensitive data held, both 
electronic and otherwise, be 
compiled and a central data 
sharing register be 
maintained recording the 
occasions when personal 
data is shared with third 
parties, including the reason 
and method of data transfer 
and nature of the data 
sharing agreement.   

2 Information Asset Inventory 
(Register) to be developed. 
Central Data Sharing 
Register to be developed.

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer
Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation

30/09/2017 25/05/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 An Information Asset 
Register has been 
compiled and is set for 
publication in line with 
report recommendations.  
The IAR is to be published 
in line with GDPR 
requirements.

P
age 99



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 5

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

5. Data 
Assurance

A Secure Data Transmission 
Policy be formulated and 
implemented. 

2 Agreed - Secure Data. 
Transmission Policy included 
as part Information Sharing 
Policy and associated 
protocols.

Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer
Assistant 
Director- 
Performance 
and Innovation

31/05/2017 25/05/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 A Secure Data 
Transmission Policy is in 
draft. Following SMT 
approval, it will be 
published in line with the 
Information Governance 
Framework update and in 
line with GDPR 
requirements by 25th May 
2018.

6. Debtors Periodic monitoring of the 
numerical sequencing of 
debtor accounts be 
undertaken and any breaks in 
sequence be investigated.

2 The breaks in sequence have 
been investigated and relate 
to specific, non-recurring 
system issues. Numerical 
sequencing will be reviewed 
as part of year end 
processes.

Financial 
Services Officer 
(Systems)
Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer

27/03/2017 30/04/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 Major interface files are 
run early in April for 
annual bills for 
encroachments, 
moorings, parking 
permits, etc. Sequential 
invoice numbers will be 
checked at this point.

7. Taxi Licensing Historical out-of-date driver 
and vehicle license details 
held on the Licensing 
Register on the council's 
website be deleted and the 
Register brought up to date. 

2 We are looking at moving off 
Civica as it is recognised that 
the functionality is limited in 
areas. Civica are onsite on 
the 23rd March 2017 and we 
will pick up this issue with the 
supplier. With the new 
system proposed, the 
register will update in real 
time and out of date records 
will be archived off the 
register as a specification 
requirement. The 
implementation date has 
been set to tie in with the 
estimated date of the system 
change. 

Public Protection 
Manager
Assistant 
Director – 
Neighbourhood 
Services

01/10/2018 01/10/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 The implementation of 
this recommendation 
remains on-going and will 
be completed in line with 
the estimated date for 
replacing the Civica Flare 
system.

P
age 100



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 6

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

8. Creditor 
Payments

A list of sample authorisation 
signatures be compiled and 
held by the Financial 
Services team.

3 Management acknowledge 
that a formal list of approved 
signatories is required and 
this has been requested. This 
only relates to a specific area 
of expenditure relating to 
property costs authorised by 
a small number of staff 
employed by the external 
property services contractor.

Financial 
Services Officer 
(Systems)

Immediate 30/04/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 A list of LSH signatures 
has not yet been 
obtained. Payment 
vouchers now include a 
scanned signature so it is 
easier to verify.

9. Development 
Control

The Administration and 
Technical team be trained to 
input relevant details onto 
Exacom.  

2 This is part of the CIL 
enforcement function and it is 
considered that the CIL 
Officer should have 
oversight. Alternatively, in the 
interim, as part of scanning 
and indexing process which 
the Technical Team 
complete, the 
Commencement Notice will 
be directed through the 
electronic workflow on 
Information@Work to the CIL 
Officer’s in-tray. The long-
term solution is for this to 
form part of the new digital 
system.

Development 
Management 
Group Manager

30/06/2018 N/A Outstanding 01/04/2018 The due date for 
implementation of this 
recommendation has not 
yet been reached.P

age 101



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 7

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

10. Disaster 
Recovery

A definition of what 
constitutes a disaster and 
arrangements for ICT DR 
testing, training and for 
standing down the plan and 
returning to business as 
usual be detailed in the ICT 
DR plan.

2 Information covering this will 
be added to the plan which is 
scheduled for review in the 
first quarter of 2018. 

Shared IT 
Manager

31/03/2018 31/05/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 On reflection, it seems 
that there is some overlap 
here between the 
Strategic Business 
Continuity Plan, the ICT 
DR Plan would be 
invoked in full or in part 
depending on the scale of 
the incident. We have 
been focused on 
delivering key 
improvements to the 
corporate risks related to 
Business Continuity, 
specifically in relation to 
SIP telephone lines. The 
target date for this action 
needs to be amended to 
the end May 2018 and 
needs input from 
Performance and Risk 
Officer.

11. Disaster 
Recovery

Recovery time objectives be 
specified more precisely and 
consistently in the Strategic 
Business Continuity Plan, 
Departmental Business 
Continuity plans and in the 
ICT DR plan. The feasibility of 
achieving the required 
recovery timescales be 
demonstrated by ICT DR 
planned testing.

2 The Strategic Business 
Continuity plan and the 
departmental business 
continuity plans will be 
reviewed and amended to 
provide more clarity as 
suggested. In relation to the 
recovery times, we can 
estimate the restore times 
based upon system sizing 
information and use this to 
update the plans.

Shared IT 
Manager
Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence 
Officer.

30/04/2018 N/A Outstanding 01/04/2018 The due date for 
implementation of this 
recommendation has not 
yet been reached.

P
age 102



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 8

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

12. Insurance A periodic reconciliation be 
performed between the 
system operated by Fleet and 
the claims system maintained 
by the Insurance Team to 
help ensure that all motor 
insurance work is properly 
claimed.

2 We will work with Fleet to 
carry out reconciliations and 
will monitor the effectiveness 
of these.

Financial 
Services Officer

30/01/2018 30/06/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 To date we haven’t been 
able to implement 
reconciliations with fleet 
regarding claims. Being 
realistic we are not 
expecting to be able to 
get to this until the 
summer after we have 
completed statement of 
accounts work.

13. Licensing – 
Premises & 
Clubs

The Statement of Licensing 
Policy be amended to reflect 
the current application 
routes.

2 The policy is set by statutory 
guidance from the home 
office, underpinning this there 
is an EU service provision 
directive requiring on line 
applications and payments.  
The current IT suppliers do 
not provide this capability and 
we have already recognised 
this as a significant weakness 
in the current system and is 
one of the main IT 
requirements in the new IT 
solution.  This is a key finding 
of the gap analysis. Due to 
the work involved and the 
cost we propose action is 
deferred until the new IT 
product is delivered.

Public Protection 
Manager
Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/12/2018 N/A Outstanding 01/04/2018 The due date for 
implementation of this 
recommendation has not 
yet been reached.
The new system is yet to 
be developed in line with 
the Customer Connect 
programme.  

P
age 103



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 9

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

14. NNDR Procedures relating to 
Business Rates be revised as 
part of the implementation of 
the new integrated system.

3 Revenues 
Manager

31/01/2018 31/05/2018 Outstanding 01/04/2018 The system went live at 
the beginning of 
February, and year end 
has been undertaken 
successfully. Detailed 
work on procedure is still 
ongoing and the priority is 
to catch up on work 
resulting from the 
conversion and the 
subsequent down time. 
Since the audit was 
undertaken we have had 
a change in management 
as the shared 
arrangements are coming 
to an end. The new 
responsible officer will be 
Revenues Manager from 
the 1st April

P
age 104



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 10

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS HAVE BEEN IMPLEMENTED 

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Responsible
Officer

Due
Date

Revised  
Due Date

Status Last Update Latest Response

15. Bereavement 
Services

Management should make 
arrangements to develop 
comprehensive documented 
procedures for Bereavement 
Services.

2 Assistant Director 
– Neighbourhood 
Services

31/12/2017 Completed 01/04/2018 Procedures have now been written 
and the recommendation is 
complete.

16. General IT 
Controls

Once all policies are refreshed, the 
procedure to be applied in the event 
of potential / known IT security 
breaches should be defined and 
documented. These arrangements 
should be made available to key 
staff.

2 IT Services 
Manager
Assistant Director- 
Performance and 
Innovation

31/03/2016 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 Security/Information Breach 
policies and protocols have been 
developed and are in place in line 
with current Information 
Governance Framework.

17. Cash Receipting – 
Car Parking

Mystery shopping exercises in 
respect of parking charges paid for 
via mobile phones, debit and credit 
card including contactless 
payments should be conducted at 
least quarterly using various 
amounts (which correspond to the 
increments of the parking tariffs), 
from various mobile phone 
numbers, and for various parking 
spaces. The payments then be 
reconciled to income processed by 
PayByPhone and CreditCall. Each 
mystery shopping exercise should 
be fully documented, and any 
supporting records should be 
retained.

2 Community and 
Leisure Manager 
with Lake and 
Parking Services 
Officer
Assistant Director 
– Neighbourhood 
Services

30/06/2017 31/12/2017 Completed 01/04/2018 5 checks have been completed 
since September 2017; all have 
tracked correctly.

18. Contract 
Management

Oversight of compliance with the 
Contract Management Policy be 
undertaken either by a reconvened 

2 Procurement and 
Contracts 
Manager

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 Work is continuing to review 
contract management performance 
across the Council. The new 
Revenues and Benefits software 

P
age 105



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 11

Contract Management Group or by 
the Procurement Team.

Assistant Director 
& Chief Finance 
Officer

has now been implemented and will 
move to contract management 
arrangements going forward. 
Inception meetings are being held 
for the new Recycling Bring Sites 
Services and Bulky Household 
Waste Services contracts which 
commence on 01/04/2018.

19. Contract 
Management

Clear planning timeframes for major 
contract extensions be established 
and be co-ordinated by the 
Procurement Team.

2 Procurement and 
Contracts 
Manager
Assistant Director 
& Chief Finance 
Officer

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 The Procurement Schedule 2018-
2019 was approved by Council on 
27/02/2018 including 83 
procurement projects with no major 
contract extensions.

20. Contract 
Management

It be ensured that key performance 
indicators are developed and 
consistently maintained and that 
they are "SMART" based to 
enhance the monitoring of service 
delivery and performance for the 
Council's major contracts.

2 Procurement and 
Contracts 
Manager
Assistant Director 
& Chief Finance 
Officer 

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 Fit-for-purpose KPIs have been set, 
including for the new Recycling 
Bring Sites Services and Bulky 
Waste Services contracts which go 
live on 01/04/2018.

21. Contract 
Management

Contract Management 
arrangements in respect of 
reviewing contractor performance 
and the receipt of annual and six 
monthly reports from the Grounds 
Maintenance contractor be more 
robustly enforced within the new 
contract extension.

2 Procurement and 
Contracts 
Manager
Assistant Director 
& Chief Finance 
Officer monitoring 
report to SMT

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 At the Partnership Board in 
December 2017, the format and 
content of the reports were agreed. 
Going forward reports will be 
prepared quarterly commencing in 
April 2018.

22. Data Assurance Arrangements for the consistent 
application of the Records 
Retention Policy be agreed with 
managers within the Council.

2 Principal 
Performance & 
Intelligence Officer
Assistant Director- 
Performance and 
Innovation

30/09/2017 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 The Records Retention Policy has 
been agreed with SMT and forms 
part of the current Information 
Governance Framework.

P
age 106



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 12

23. Procurement The goods and services identified in 
Appendix A be reviewed to 
establish whether value for money 
is being achieved and whether 
formal tendering exercises should 
be initiated going forward.

2 Financial Services 
Manager
Assistant Director 
& Chief Finance 
Officer

31/03/2018 31/03/2018 Completed 01/04/2018 The four remaining cases are 
addressed through tender 
exercises; they remain at various 
stages in this process but have 
been commenced.

24. Risk Management Risk Management training be 
included in the Corporate 
Development Programme and 
refresher training on risk 
management be provided to all 
relevant officers.

2 Performance and 
Risk Officer
Assistant Director- 
Performance and 
Innovation

01/03/2017 31/12/2017 Completed 01/04/2018 The Performance and Risk Officer 
assisted operational managers with 
the year-end review of their 
operational risks. This involved a 
preliminary refresh followed by a 
review. All operational Risk 
registers can now be seen on one 
page in SharePoint, linked to the 
new Risk Management page. Risk 
training has also been delivered in 
March 2018 as part of the 
Corporate Development 
Programme.

25. Capital 
Investment

A comparison between 
actual/committed expenditure to 
approved project budget be 
included in Highlight Reports to 
Project Boards with financial 
information to be checked with the 
Finance Department and reconciled 
to the ledger.

2 Assistant Director 
Performance and 
Innovation

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The highlights reports to the joint 
digital boards have had the finance 
section strengthened.”

26. Capital 
Investment

A Benefits Realisation Plan be 
prepared and reported to the Digital 
Implementation Project Board, 
which aligns to the original 
approved planned objectives, 
deliverables and outcomes from the 
approved Business Plan and 
ensures that benefits are “SMART” 
based.

2 Assistant Director 
Performance and 
Innovation

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The benefits realisation plan was 
completed for the Customer 
Connect Programme and is on 
display in the Programme Office.

P
age 107



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 13

27. Capital 
Investment

Risks relating to the delivery of the 
Digital Implementation Project be 
reviewed, identified, assessed and 
mitigating actions documented and 
reported consistently to the Digital 
Implementation Board with 
procedures clarified as to when the 
management of risk be escalated to 
the Customer Connect Programme 
Board.

2 Assistant Director 
Performance and 
Innovation

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Programme risks are regularly 
reviewed.

28. Creditor 
Payments

Purchase card request forms and 
approval to increase card limits be 
retained.

2 Financial Services 
Officer (Systems)

31/07/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Implemented, all requests in writing 
and retained

29. Creditor 
Payments

It be ensured that evidence of the 
supplier changes verification 
process is retained in all cases.

2 Financial Services 
Officer (Systems)

Immediate N/A Completed 01/04/2018 All documents scanned on receipt 
into info@work document retention 
system, changes are checked as 
part of each payment run and the 
check is recorded on Integra.

30. Development 
Control

It be ensured that there is 
consistency between the Validation 
Checklist and the website with 
regards to the acknowledgement of 
planning applications.

3 Technical Team 
Leader

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that the 
checklist and the website are now 
consistent.

31. Development 
Control

A weekly report be received by the 
CIL Officer of all new applications to 
ensure applicants are fully informed 
of their CIL liability.  

2 CIL Officer & 
Technical Team 
Leader

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that a 
weekly report is now received.

32. Development 
Control

The CIL Officer be provided with 
read only access to the Integra 
Finance system to investigate 
whether payments have been 
received.   

2 Financial Services 
Officer (Systems)

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The CIL officer now has a login to 
Integra to enquire as required.

P
age 108



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 14

33. Development 
Control

A process be developed for 
removing the CIL liability from the 
land charges register.

2 Development 
Management 
Group Manager

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that this 
recommendation has been 
implemented.

34. Development 
Control

Adequate contingency cover for the 
CIL Officer be established.

2 Development 
Management 
Group Manager

31/10/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that 
contingency cover is in place.

35 Development 
Control

The Administration and Technical 
team be reminded that each 
applicant be given a unique 
reference number.  

2 Development 
Management 
Group Manager

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that the 
Administration and Technical team 
have been reminded that each 
applicant is to be given a unique 
reference number.  

36. Development 
Control

It be ensured that there is 
consistency between the target 
period stated on the website and 
acknowledgement letter with 
regards to the response timescale 
for pre-planning advice.

2 Development 
Management 
Group Manager

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that this 
recommendation has been 
implemented.

37. Development 
Control

It be ensured that enforcement 
activity is undertaken on a timely 
basis.

2 Development 
Management 
Group Manager

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that this 
recommendation has been 
implemented.

38. Development 
Control

Administration and Technical staff 
be trained on identifying when a CIL 
form needs to be completed.

2 Development 
Management 
Group Manager

25/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The Development Manager Group 
Manager has confirmed that this 
recommendation has been 
implemented.

39. Digital Innovation The draft PID be finalised and 
updated to include details of, for 
example, change management 
arrangements, testing, training, 
sign-off and arrangements for go-
live, project closure and the means 

2 Assistant Director 
Performance and 
Innovation

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 All PIDs were reviewed, completed 
and signed off by the Boards at 
SLDC and EDC during the third 
quarter of 2017/2018. All project 
documentation is up to date.

P
age 109



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 15

by which use of legacy systems is 
to be discontinued.

40. Digital Innovation The people resources required to 
undertake work packages be 
factored into the project plan, 
agreed by both councils and 
provided for, including 
arrangements for backfilling the 
posts of any staff seconded to the 
project team.

2 Assistant Director 
Performance and 
Innovation

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 People resources have been 
included in the project 
documentation.

41. Digital Innovation The arrangements for handover to 
business as usual and subsequent 
responsibilities for system support, 
management and future 
development be agreed and 
documented.

2 Assistant Director 
Performance and 
Innovation

31/03/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The review was commissioned and 
agreed by both councils. This has 
resulted in some structural changes 
to the shared IT Team to create 
capacity for digital development, 
solution design and project 
management. The revised structure 
was considered by SLDC’s Human 
Resources Committee on 
27/03/2018 and staff consultation is 
ongoing. Potentially, 
implementation will commence 
from 01/04/2018.

42. Disaster 
Recovery

The ICT risk analysis be updated 
and reference be made to it within 
the ICT DR plan indicating how DR 
related risks are controlled and/or 
will be treated.

3 Shared IT 
Manager

31/03/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The ICT Risk Register has been 
updated to include a risk regarding 
Business Continuity. It is scheduled 
to be reviewed at the Shared IT 
Board 23rd March 2018

43. Disaster 
Recovery

A programme of periodic testing be 
devised, approved and results and 
lessons learnt recorded.

2 Shared IT 
Manager

31/03/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 We have agreed to perform annual 
DR testing, the detail of which will 
be agreed each year by the Shared 
IT Board. We have agreed a format 
of a report for the results to be 
recorded and for any required 
improvements to be documented”

P
age 110



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 16

44. Flood Resilience 
Grants

For any future grant process, the 
Council determine whether non-
completed applications be returned 
for completion.

3 Environmental 
Protection Officer

Completed N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The project has been completed; a 
full review is being now completed 
and findings are expected in July 
2018 which will further consider 
these recommendations.

45. Flood Resilience 
Grants

Retrospective due diligence checks 
be undertaken on application 61196 
to provide assurance that there was 
no conflict of interest within the 
quotation process.

2 Environmental 
Protection Officer

Completed N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Checks have been undertaken to 
determine if there was a 
relationship between applicant and 
supplier. It has been established 
that whilst there is a family 
connection, the supplier has no 
financial interest in the property. 
Two quotes were provided and the 
chosen supplier was the cheapest

46. Insurance The Contract Procedure Rules, 
which form part of the Constitution, 
be followed whenever contracts 
between third parties and the 
Council are contemplated. In 
particular, no work be commenced 
in advance of a valid, signed 
contract being in place which 
properly considers the insurance 
arrangements for the scope of work.

2 Financial Services 
Manager

31/01/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Managers reminded by email in 
October 2017 (refer attached email) 
and verbally reminded at each 
Operational Managers Forum 
meeting since.

47. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

All Licensing Officers be required to 
undertake follow up visits once a 
Premises Licence has been 
awarded.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer 
Licensing Officers

30/09/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Codes are available to record follow 
up visits according to risk, which 
are monitored during monthly one 
to ones and recorded as part of 
monthly performance data.

48. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that an Aged Debtors 
report is received, and actioned, on 
a monthly basis.

2 Public Protection 
Manager
Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/12/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 An aged debtor report is now 
received each month, although the 
lack of information on the report 
and the issues of systems not being 
able to interact with other systems 
in place has been identified as a 
major functionality issue and 

P
age 111



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 17

identified in the gap analysis for the 
new system.

49. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

When an invoice is identified as 
being outstanding on the Aged 
Debtors report, a visit be 
undertaken to determine whether 
the licensable activity is still being 
undertaken and, if so, the 
appropriate action taken.

2 Public Protection 
Manager

Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer 

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Action is now being taken on 
outstanding invoices, although the 
lack of information on the report 
and the issues of systems not being 
able to interact with other systems 
in place has been identified as a 
major functionality issue and 
identified in the gap analysis for the 
new system.

50. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

The links on the website be made 
available to the public for the 
notices regarding licences and 
variations.  

2 Licensing 
Assistants
Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/12/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Two members of staff have 
received web editor training. Work 
has started on the website and the 
weekly list is now the public notice.  
Applications are now uploaded 
within one working day, and the 
Public notice is clear on the website 
Longer term, (until the digital 
solution is in place) we are working 
with IT to establish an automatic 
upload or upload via CSV file.

51. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

The website be amended to include 
all records when searched for or a 
statement be included stating that 
only the first 1,000 records will be 
displayed and for the search to be 
refined based on the name of the 
licence holder, to ensure that the 
information on the Public Register 
agrees to the information on Flare.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/12/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This has been progressed with IT, 
although the ultimate solution will 
form part of the new Customer 
Connect system. 

52. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that Disclosure and 
Barring Service Certificates are 
obtained and dated within the one 
month period.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/08/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This issue was highlighted at the 
August 2017 team meeting. In 
addition to this, personal licence 
records are also checked during the 
collection of performance figures to 
ensure that all records and 

P
age 112



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 18

certificates are correct.  Any issues 
are brought to the officer/assistant’s 
attention during monthly one to 
ones and picked up as a learning 
and development issue.  

53. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that all records on 
Flare are linked to the W drive in 
order to obtain the relevant 
information.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 The issue of mapping was rectified 
at the time of the audit.

54. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that the Flare system 
is fully populated in order that the 
relevant information is produced on 
the premises licence.    

2 Licensing 
Assistants
Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Valid dates on licences were 
identified at the time of the audit 
and updated licences sent to the 
licence holders.  

55. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that evidence of the 
check made to ensure a Designated 
Premises Supervisor is a personal 
licence holder is maintained.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This is built in to the process and 
now loads in the template when a 
Designated Premises Supervisor is 
varied at the premises.

56. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that all Licensing 
Officers attach photographs of 
notices on display to the Flare 
system and record details of the 
newspaper notice.  

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This is built in to the process and 
now loads in the template when a 
Designated Premises Supervisor is 
varied at the premises.

57. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that a Designated 
Premises Supervisor Consent Form 
is completed in all cases and held 
on the Flare system.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

30/09/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This is built in to the process and 
now loads in the template when a 
Designated Premises Supervisor is 
varied at the premises.

58. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

It be ensured that the Public 
Register is updated with relevant 
information, including the date the 
application was made, closing date 
for representations and the date the 
licence was issued.

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/12/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This recommendation has now 
been implemented.

P
age 113



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 19

59. Licensing – 
Premises & Clubs

Credit notes be raised, where 
appropriate, and invoices raised to 
the new premises licence holder.  

2 Principal Food, 
Licensing and 
Safety Officer

31/12/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This recommendation has now 
been implemented.

60. Main Accounting 
Systems

Security settings for Integra for 
employees leaving the Council be 
disabled more promptly and 
consistently.

2 Financial Services 
Officer (Systems)

31/03/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 Cross-checked monthly as part of 
period-end systems check list.

61. Main Accounting 
Systems

Care be taken to ensure that the 
creation up of security groupings on 
Integra reflects the security 
groupings requested by the relevant 
authorising manager.

3 Financial Services 
Officer (Systems)

31/03/2018 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 User access to Integra is now 
requested using an electronic form 
which requires the access to be 
specified through a series of tick 
boxes that correspond with security 
groups, 

62. Payroll The Council's existing Right to Work 
checks be enhanced to include the 
line "the date on which this right to 
work check was made: [insert date]" 
on each copy document retained. A 
Right to Work checklist be 
completed for each check.

2 HR Manager 31/12/2017 N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This has now been implemented.  
Stamp and Home Office checklists 
are both being used.

63. Payroll Payroll reconciliations for the iTrent 
automatic interface to the financial 
system be completed on a monthly 
basis and independently reviewed 
by a senior member of staff. 
Expense items be included in the 
reconciliations.

3 HR Manager Immediate N/A Completed 01/04/2018 This reconciliation is in addition to 
the checks of deductions and 
payments which are carried out 
monthly and checked as part of the 
normal payment process.

P
age 114



South Lakeland District Council

Follow Up Review 2017/18

Page 20

THE FOLLOWING RECOMMENDATIONS ARE NO LONGER APPLICABLE

No. Audit Title Recommendation Priority Management Response Responsible
Officers

Due
Date

Revised  Due 
Date

Status Last 
Update

Latest Response

64. Agency and 
Interim Staff

A corporate purchasing 
arrangement should be put in 
place for the supply of agency 
/ interim workers which 
provides value for money, is 
reviewed for best value on a 
regular basis, meets the 
needs of all service areas, 
and which is then used for the 
recruitment of all agency / 
interim workers. Following 
the introduction of a 
corporate purchasing 
arrangement relevant 
monitoring of compliance 
with this and appropriate 
contract management 
arrangements should be 
established as necessary.

2 The arrangements are still 
being developed that enables 
the use of main/national 
agencies for the majority of 
posts as well as local 
arrangements when the need 
for spot hire arises.  A 
meeting is to be arranged 
with Adecco UK by the middle 
of November 2017, with a 
view to having the 
recommendation 
implemented by 31st March 
2018.

HR Manager
Assistant 
Director & Chief 
Finance Officer

31/03/2017 31/03/2018 No Longer 
Applicable

01/04/2018 The new HR Manager will 
review the need to 
introduce a corporate 
purchasing arrangement; 
the review will assess 
recent years’ expenditure 
and reasons for utilising 
contingency workers prior 
to a decision being made 
along with a full 
understand of the impact 
of Customer Connect and 
the likely demand going 
forward.
This area is subject to 
further internal audit 
review in 2018/19.

P
age 115



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 116



South Lakeland District Council 
Audit Committee

19th April 2018
Interim Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable

REPORT FROM: Peter Harrison – Internal Audit Manager (Director, 
TIAA Limited)

REPORT AUTHORS: Peter Harrison – Internal Audit Manager (Director, 
TIAA Limited)

WARDS: Corporate Issue

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1. This report provides a summary of the outcomes of the work of the internal audit 

provided by TIAA Limited for South Lakeland District Council for 2017/18 and 
includes the Head of Internal Audit’s interim opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Council’s arrangements for risk management, governance and internal control in 
accordance with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards 
(PSIAS).

2.0 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 Members of the Audit Committee are asked to note:

 The Head of Internal Audit’s interim opinion of reasonable assurance on the 
Council’s overall systems of governance, risk management and internal 
control for the year ended 31st March 2018 set out in Appendix 1. 

 The progress achieved so far in 2017/18 in delivering the Audit Plan and the 
outcomes of completed audit reviews set out in Appendix 1. 

 The Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of Internal Audit independence as 
required by the mandatory PSIAS.

 The Head of Internal Audit’s declaration of conformance with the mandatory 
PSIAS.

Page 117

Item No.12



3. BACKGROUND 
3.1 All local authorities must make proper provision for internal audit in line with the 

1972 Local Government Act. The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require 
that the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the 
effectiveness of its risk management, internal control and governance processes, 
taking into account the Public Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS).

3.2 For 2017/18, the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the timetable for 
the preparation and approval of accounts to be brought forward to a draft 
accounts deadline of 31st May 2018 and an audit deadline of 31st July 2018. 

3.3 We have provided an interim Head of Internal Audit opinion to inform the Annual 
Governance Statement as part of this accelerated process. My final opinion will 
be provided upon completion of our 2017/18 work prior to the accounts deadline 
of 31st May 2018; this will be presented to this committee in July 2018. 

3.4 Internal Audit is responsible for providing independent assurance to the Council’s 
senior management and to the Audit Committee on the systems of governance, 
risk management and internal control.

3.5 It is management’s responsibility to establish and maintain internal control 
systems and to ensure that resources are properly applied, risks appropriately 
managed and that outcomes are achieved. Management is responsible for the 
system of internal control and should set in place policies and procedures to 
ensure that controls are operating effectively.

4. INTERNAL AUDIT INTERIM OPINION
4.1 The purpose of this report is to give my interim opinion as the Head of Internal 

Audit for South Lakeland District Council on the adequacy and effectiveness of 
the Council’s systems of risk management, governance and internal control from 
the work undertaken by Internal Audit for the year ended 31st March 2018.

4.2 This report contributes to the Council’s Annual Governance Statement.
4.3 In giving this opinion, it should be noted that assurance can never be absolute 

and it is not possible to give complete assurance that there are no major control 
weaknesses. My opinion is based on the work undertaken by Internal Audit 
during the year, including the outcomes of any follow up work undertaken.

4.4 I am satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has been undertaken to allow me 
to give a conclusion on the adequacy and effectiveness of risk management, 
governance and internal control.

4.5 Nine risk based audits have been completed so far in the year of which two have 
resulted in substantial assurance and six have resulted in a reasonable 
assurance assessment. The review of licensing for premises and clubs was 
assessed a limited assurance. There were no reviews which resulted in a no 
assurance assessment.  

4.6 My interim opinion takes into account the outcomes of all audit work together with 
the management responses of the Council which I consider to have been 
appropriate and demonstrate the Council’s commitment to addressing the issues 
raised.

Page 118



4.7 I can also report that there has been no threat to the independence of internal audit that 
would impact on the provision of my annual opinion statement.

4.8 My interim opinion is that I can provide reasonable assurance over the Council’s 
systems of governance, risk management and internal control.

4.9 The Annual Report at Appendix 1 shows the individual assurance opinions against each 
audit area.

4.10 There have been no changes to the Annual Plan during the year.

5. STATEMENT OF CONFORMANCE WITH PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT 
STANDARDS

5.1 Internal audit conducts all its work using a risk based audit methodology which has been 
designed to ensure conformance with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. I can 
confirm that all work has been carried out in accordance with these Standards.

6. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
6.1 Internal audit work has been carried out in accordance with the mandatory standards for 

internal audit.
6.2 The work of internal audit is considered to be sufficient to provide an interim opinion on 

the systems of governance, risk management and internal control.
6.3 There have been no threats to internal audit independence that would impact on the 

provision of an interim annual opinion statement.
6.4 The interim annual opinion has concluded reasonable assurance over the systems of 

governance, risk management and internal control.

7. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
7.1 There are no alternative options; the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require that 

the Council undertakes an effective Internal Audit to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk 
management, internal control and governance processes, taking into account the Public 
Sector Internal Auditing Standards (PSIAS).

8. LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
8.1 Internal Audit provides independent assurance on the Council’s arrangements for 

governance, risk management and internal control in support of delivery of the Council’s 
strategic priorities.

9. IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Financial and Resources

There are no direct financial implications to this report.

9.2 Human Resources

There are no direct human resource implications to this report.

10.3 Legal
There are no direct legal implications to this report.

10.4 Social, Economic and Environmental

There are no direct social, economic and environmental implications to this report.Page 119



10.5 Equality and Diversity

There are no direct equality and diversity implications to this report.

10.6 Risk

Risk Consequence Controls required

The Council does not 
comply with legislative 
requirements as laid out 
under the Accounts and 
Audit Regulations 2015

Adverse impact on the 
Council in respect of 
conformance with 
expected auditing 
standards and on the 
assurances delivered by 
internal audit regarding 
adequate and effective 
internal control 
arrangements.

A complete and thorough 
self-assessment 
undertaken with supporting 
details to illustrate the 
effectiveness of internal 
audit against the PSIAS 
and LGAN requirements.

CONTACT OFFICER
Report Author:  Peter Harrison, Director, TIAA Limited.

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT
Appendix 

No.

1 Internal Audit Interim Annual Report 2017/18 including the Head of Internal 
Audit’s interim opinion.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE
Name of Background document Where it is available

Review of the Effectiveness of Internal Audit

Page 120



TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio 
Holder

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

31/03/2018 n/a

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

19/04/2018 3.4.18 3.4.18

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

n/a n/a n/a

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



Internal Audit

March 2018 INTERIM

APPENDIX 1

South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Interim Annual Report

2017/18

P
age 123



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18

Page 1

Internal Audit Annual Report

INTRODUCTION

This is the 2017/18 Interim Annual Report by TIAA on the internal control 
environment at South Lakeland District Council. The annual internal audit report 
summarises the outcomes of the reviews we have carried out on the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control. This 
report is designed to assist the Council in making its annual governance 
statement. 

HEAD OF INTERNAL AUDIT’S INTERIM ANNUAL OPINION 

TIAA is of the opinion that, for the areas reviewed during the year at 
South Lakeland District Council, there is reasonable assurance that 
effective risk management, control and governance processes are 
in place to manage the achievement of its objectives.

INTERNAL AUDIT PLANNED COVERAGE AND OUTPUT 

The 2017/18 Annual Audit Plan approved by the Audit Committee was for 190 
days of internal audit coverage in the year. 

There were no changes to the Audit Plan during the year.

The majority of the planned work has been carried out, with the exception of 
the reviews of Asset Management and Council Tax. These are to be carried 
out in April 2018 and the outcome of these will be included in the final Annual 
Report. (Annex A).

ASSURANCE

TIAA has to date carried out 9 reviews, which were designed to ascertain the 
extent to which the internal controls in the system are adequate to ensure that 
activities and procedures are operating to achieve the Council’s objectives. 

For each assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of 
the controls in mitigating the key control risks was provided. Details of these 
are provided in Annex A and a summary is set out below.

Assurance Assessments Number of Reviews Previous Year

Substantial Assurance 2 2

Reasonable Assurance 8 12

Limited Assurance 1 -

No Assurance - -

The areas on which the assurance assessments have been provided can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss 
and their effectiveness is reduced if the internal audit recommendations made 
during the year have not been fully implemented.

We made the following total number of recommendations on our audit work 
carried out in 2017/18. 

Urgent Important Routine

- 35 11

P
age 124



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18

Page 2

AUDIT SUMMARY

Control weaknesses: There has been one area reviewed by internal audit 
where it was assessed that the effectiveness of some of the internal control 
arrangements provided limited assurance, this relating to the licensing of 
premises and clubs. We have not issued any 'no assurance’ reports. 

Operational Effectiveness Opportunities: One of the roles of internal audit 
is to add value and during the financial year we provided advice on 
opportunities to enhance the operational effectiveness of the areas reviewed 
and the number of these opportunities is summarised below.

Operational

1

INDEPENDENCE AND OBJECTIVITY OF INTERNAL AUDIT

There were no limitations or restrictions placed on the internal audit service 
which impaired either the independence or objectivity of the service provided.

QUALITY ASSURANCE 

Ongoing quality assurance work was carried out throughout the year and we 
continue to comply with ISO 9001 standards. 

An independent external review was carried out of our compliance of the 
Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) in 2016 with a further 
independent assessment carried out in 2017. 

These assessments confirmed full compliance with all the standards. Our 
work also complies with the IIA-UK Professional Standards. 

RELEASE OF REPORT

The table below sets out the history of this Interim Annual Report.

Date Report issued: 31st March 2018

P
age 125



South Lakeland District Council

Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18

Page 3

Annexes

Annex A
Actual against planned Internal Audit Work 2017/18

System Type Planned 
Days

Actual 
Days Assurance Assessment Comments

Creditor Payments Assurance 10 10 Reasonable Assurance

Licensing – Premises and Clubs Assurance 10 10 Limited Assurance

Development Control Assurance 20 20 Reasonable Assurance

Insurance Assurance 10 10 Reasonable Assurance

Building Control Assurance 20 20 Substantial Assurance

ICT Disaster Recovery Assurance 5 5 Reasonable Assurance

Payroll Assurance 15 15 Substantial Assurance

Performance Monitoring Assurance 10 10 Reasonable Assurance

Compliance with the Local Code of Corporate Governance Compliance 10 10 Reasonable Assurance

Lake Services – Moorings and Encroachments Assurance 10 10 Draft report issued

Awarding of Grants Assurance 10 10 Fieldwork complete

Council Tax Assurance 20 20 To be commenced in April 2018

Asset Management Assurance 10 10 To be commenced in April 2018

Follow Up Follow Up 10 10

Audit Management 20 20

Total Days 190 190

P
age 126



South Lakeland District Council
Audit Committee

19th April 2018
INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL PLAN 2018-19

PORTFOLIO: Not applicable

REPORT FROM: Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director Resources & 
Section 151 Officer

REPORT AUTHORS: Peter Harrison - Internal Audit Manager (Director, 
TIAA Limited)

WARDS: Corporate Issue

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1. Internal Audit is required, under the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS), to prepare an annual risk based audit plan for approval by 
the Audit Committee. 

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 It is recommended that the Audit Committee: 

(1) Approves the Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018-19 which is attached at 
Appendix 1. 

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 

3.1 The Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors describes internal auditing as “an 
independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value 
and improve an organisation’s operations. Internal audit helps the Council to 
achieve its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to 
evaluating and improving the effectiveness of risk management, control and 
governance processes.” 

3.2. The Accounts and Audit Regulations requires the Council to undertake an 
adequate and effective internal audit of its accounting records and of its system 
of internal control in accordance with proper practices in relation to internal 
control. Proper Practices are now defined within the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) which became mandatory for all UK public sector internal 
auditors from 1st April 2013. 

3.3. The PSIAS affirm the need for annual risk based audit plans to be developed in 
order that the Head of Internal Audit can form an annual opinion on the Council’s 
systems of risk management, governance and internal control. 

Page 127

Item No.13



3.4 The draft Internal Audit Annual Plan attached at Appendix 1 has been prepared 
following review of corporate documents including the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register, corporate plans and recent internal audit coverage. 

4.0 INTERNAL AUDIT SERVICE DELIVERY 

4.1 The PSIAS require that the Internal Audit plan sets out a high level statement of 
how the Internal Audit Service will be delivered and developed in accordance 
with the internal audit charter and how it links to the organisational objectives and 
priorities. 

4.2. Internal Audit for South Lakeland District Council is delivered by TIAA Limited 
under a contractual arrangement for three years commencing 1st April 2016. 

4.3. Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the 
Council Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in place 
across the Council to deliver priorities and objectives.   

4.4. It is a requirement of the PSIAS that the Council has an Internal Audit Charter 
which has been approved by senior management and the Audit Committee. The 
Charter, approved by the Committee at its meeting in July 2017, sets out the 
arrangements for the delivery of the Internal Audit service to South Lakeland 
District Council (the Council).   

5.0 ROLES OF MANAGEMENT AND OF INTERNAL AUDIT 

5.1 It is the role of management to establish effective systems of governance, risk 
management and internal controls in order to: 

 safeguard the Council’s resources and prevent fraud; 

 ensure the completeness and reliability of records; 

 monitor adherence to laws, regulations, policies and procedures; 

 promote operational efficiency demonstrate the achievement of value for 
money; and 

 manage risk. 

5.2 It is the responsibility of management to establish the checks and balances 
needed to confirm that their systems are working effectively, that all information 
within them is accurate, that they are free from fraud or error. 

5.3 Internal audit’s role is to provide assurance that management are undertaking 
the appropriate checks over their systems to confirm that they are working 
effectively.  It is not the role of internal audit to re-perform management’s checks 
or to undertake such checking on management’s behalf.   

5.4 In order to safeguard its independence, Internal Audit does not have any 
operational responsibilities and is not responsible for any of the decision making, 
policy setting or monitoring of compliance within the Council.    

Page 128



6.0 INTERNAL AUDIT RESOURCES  

6.1 The Director of Resources (S151 Officer) has contracted with TIAA Limited to 
deliver 190 days of Internal Audit time in 2018-19. This is deemed a sufficient 
number of audit days in which to provide an opinion on the systems of 
governance, risk and internal control in line with the PSIAS and in order to support 
the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement. 

6.2 The PSIAS also reflect the requirement for internal audit plans to be flexible in 
order to respond to new and emerging risks to the organisation. The Plan will be 
subject to regular review to ensure it remains appropriate and may be subject to 
revision. In this event, revisions would be considered and agreed by the Assistant 
Director of Resources and reported to the Audit Committee, including the need 
for any additional audit resources if appropriate. Any request for significant 
consulting activity by Internal Audit would be approved by the Audit Committee 
in line with the requirements of the PSIAS. 

7.0 CATEGORIES OF INTERNAL AUDIT WORK 

7.1 Corporate Reviews – these are reviews which are strategic in nature or which cut 
across the entire Council. These reviews are designed to provide assurance that 
the Council has effective governance and risk management arrangements to 
mitigate strategic risks. 

7.2 Departmental Risk-Based Audit Reviews – these reviews have been identified in 
consultation with senior management and following review of corporate plans and 
the Corporate Risk Register. These reviews are spread across service areas 
following a risk assessment to ensure that Internal Audit resources are targeted 
at the areas where the greatest benefit will be achieved.  

7.3 Financial System Reviews – A three-year programme has been devised which 
will ensure that each main financial system is reviewed in depth at least once 
every three years.   

7.4 Governance System Reviews – a provision is included for cyclical reviews of key 
governance systems. 

7.5 Computer Audit – the Plan includes provision for computer audit work which will 
provide assurance over the technical controls in place for key IT systems and 
processes. 

7.6 Audit Management, Advice and Guidance – capacity has been built into the Plan 
for audit management, planning and reporting. This also includes some provision 
for formal advice and guidance to all services across the Council.   

7.7 The follow up of previous audit requirements is a key requirement of the Public 
Sector Internal Audit Standards to provide assurance on the successful 
implementation of agreed recommendations. Where an audit has received a 
lower level assurance rating (i.e. partial or limited assurance) in the previous 
year, Internal Audit will now undertake a formal follow up of the management 
actions which have been undertaken to address the agreed audit 
recommendations; this will include formal interviewing, audit testing and reporting 

Page 129



to provide senior officers and members with the required independent assurance 
that key areas for improvement address have been addressed.    

8.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

8.1 The production of a risk based audit plan is a key requirement of the PSIAS. 
There are no alternative options. 

9.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

9.1 Internal Audit supports the delivery of the Council Priorities as set out in the 
Council Plan by providing independent assurance over the arrangements in place 
across the Council to deliver priorities and objectives. 

10.0 IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Financial and Resources 

10.1.1 There are no direct financial implications to this report. The Audit  

10.2 Human Resources 

10.2.1 There are no direct staffing implications arising from this report. 

10.3 Legal 

10.3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

10.4 Social, Economic and Environmental.

10.4.1 Have you completed a Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons. 

This proposal is considered to be neutral in terms of Health, Social, Economic 
and Environmental impacts. 

10.5 Equality and Diversity. 

10.5.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons. 

This proposal is considered to be neutral in terms of Equality and Diversity 
impacts. 

Page 130



10.6 Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required

Internal Audit coverage 
does not address the high 
risk areas of Council 
activity.  

Internal Audit coverage 
does not address the 
high risk areas of Council 
activity.  

Non-delivery of the agreed 
Audit Plan.  Unplanned 
work which arises in year 
which requires audit 
attention.

The Council would be more 
vulnerable to risk.

The Council does not 
receive adequate 
assurance over the 
internal control 
environment.  

Potential breach of the 
statutory requirement to 
maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal 
control.  

Risk based annual audit 
planning. 

Regular progress reporting 
to senior management and 
Audit Committee each 
quarter. 

A degree of flexibility in the 
Plan to accommodate 
unplanned work.

CONTACT OFFICER
Report Author: Peter Harrison 

TIAA Limited 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix 
No.

1 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018-19

Page 131



TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Portfolio 
Holder

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

28/03/2018 29/03/2018

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

19/04/2018 28/03/2018

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

  

Page 132



2018/19

APPENDIX 1

South Lakeland District Council

Annual Internal Audit Plan

P
age 133



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 1

Overview

Introduction

The Audit Plan for 2018/19 has been developed by carrying out an updated audit risk 
assessment to ensure that the planned coverage for the year is focussed on the key 
audit risk areas and where required the coverage will enable an annual Head of Audit 
Opinion to be provided in the Annual Report.

Key Emerging Themes

2018/19 will continue to be a challenging year for local authorities as funding pressures 
continue. We have identified a number of key areas which require internal audit coverage 
during the year.

Adequacy of the planned audit coverage

The Audit Plan for 2018/19 provides the level of coverage to enable a head of audit 
annual opinion to be made on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 
organisation’s framework of governance, risk management and control as required by 
the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS).

                                         Figure 1 – 2018/19 Audit planning process

 Enactment of GDPR – this will have a significant impact on how data is held and 
protected.

 Cybercrime – all the indications from 2017/18 are that there will be more 
sophisticated attempts to disrupt and deny services often for no clear motive.

 Homelessness legislation – the Homelessness Reduction Bill will oblige councils to 
start assessing someone at risk of being made homeless 56 days before losing 
their home. Currently, the threat of homelessness is defined as starting 28 days 
before the person loses their home. 

 Customer Connect – the Council continues to implement its digital innovation 
project. 

P
age 134



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 2

Internal Audit Plan

Audit Strategy Methodology

We adopt a proprietary risk based approach (GUARD) to determining your audit 
needs each year which includes reviewing your risk register and risk management 
framework, previous internal audit work for the organisation, the Regulatory 
Framework and assessment of SLDC, external audit recommendations together 
with key corporate documentation such as your business and corporate plan, 
standing orders, and financial regulations. The Strategy is based predominantly on 
our understanding of the inherent risks facing SLDC and has been developed with 
senior management and Committee. 

Risk Prioritisation

Each year an updated risk assessment is carried out to ensure the Audit Strategy 
remains fully aligned with the key risks facing SLDC.

Audit Strategy and Annual Plan

The Annual Plan (Annex A) sets out the reviews that will be carried out, the planned 
times and the scopes for each of these reviews. The audit plan contains those 
reviews which form part of the rolling three-year review of key financial and 
governance systems (Annex B). 

The Annual Plan will be subject to ongoing review and could change as the risks 
change for the organisation and will be formally reviewed with senior management 
and the Governance Committee mid-way through the financial year or should a 
significant issue arise.

The overall agreed time for the delivery of the Annual Plan includes: research, 
preparation and issue of terms of reference, production and review of working 
papers and reports and site work. The Annual Plan has been prepared on the 
assumption that the expected controls will be in place. 

Audit Remit

The Audit Remit (Annex C) formally defines internal audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. It establishes internal audit’s position within SLDC and defines the 
scope of internal audit activities and ensures compliance with the PSIAS.

Reporting

Assignment Reports: A separate report will be prepared for each review carried 
out. Each report will be prepared in accordance with the arrangements contained in 
the Terms of Reference agreed with TIAA and which accord with the requirements 
of the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). 

Progress Reports: Progress reports will be prepared for each Governance 
Committee meeting. Each report will detail progress achieved to date against the 
agreed annual plan.

Annual Report: An Annual Report will be prepared for each year in accordance with 
the requirements set out in the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS). The 
Annual Report will include our opinion of the overall adequacy and effectiveness of 
SLDC’s governance, risk management and operational control processes.

Other Briefings: During the year Client Briefing Notes, Benchmarking and lessons 
learned digests will be provided. These are designed to keep the organisation 
abreast of in-year developments which may impact on the governance, risk and 
control assurance framework.

Assurance Mapping

For each assurance review an assessment of the combined effectiveness of the 
controls in mitigating the key control risks will be provided. The assurance mapping 
process is set out in Annex D.

P
age 135



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 3

Liaison with the External Auditor 

We will liaise with SLDC’s External Auditor. Any matters in the areas included in the 
Annual Plan that are identified by the external auditor in their audit management 
letters will be included in the scope of the appropriate review.

Performance

The following Performance Targets will be used to measure the performance of 
internal audit in delivering the Annual Plan:

Area Performance Measure Target

Completion of planned audits. 100%
Achievement of the plan

Audits completed in time allocation. 100%

Draft report issued within 10 working days of exit 
meeting.

95%

Reports Issued
Final report issued within 10 working days of receipt of 
responses.

95%

Professional Standards Compliance with PSIAS Standards. 100%

Conflict of Interest

We are not aware of any conflicts of interest and should any arise we will manage 
them in line with PSIAS requirements, the SLDC’s requirements and TIAA’s internal 
policies.

Limitations and Responsibility

Substantive testing will only be carried out where a review assesses the internal 
controls to be providing ‘limited’ or ‘no’ assurance with the prior approval of SLDC 
and additional time will be required to carry out such testing. SLDC is responsible 
for taking appropriate action to establish whether any loss or impropriety has arisen 
as a result of the control weaknesses.

Internal controls can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against 
misstatement or loss. The limitations on assurance include the possibility of one or 

more of the following situations, control activities being circumvented by the 
collusion of two or more persons, human error, or the overriding of controls by 
management. Additionally, no assurance can be provided that the internal controls 
will continue to operate effectively in future periods or that the controls will be 
adequate to mitigate all significant risks that may arise in future. 

The responsibility for a sound system of internal controls rests with management 
and work performed by internal audit should not be relied upon to identify all 
strengths and weaknesses that may exist. Neither should internal audit work be 
relied upon to identify all circumstances of fraud or irregularity, should there be any, 
although the audit procedures have been designed so that any material irregularity 
has a reasonable probability of discovery. Even sound systems of internal control 
may not be proof against collusive fraud.

Reliance will be placed on management to provide internal audit with full access to 
staff and to accounting records and transactions and to ensure the authenticity of 
these documents.

The matters raised in the audit reports will be only those that come to the attention 
of the auditor during the course of the internal audit reviews and are not necessarily 
a comprehensive statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements 
that might be made. The audit reports are prepared solely for management's use 
and are not prepared for any other purpose.

Audit Committee Responsibility

It is the responsibility of the Audit Committee to determine that the number of audit 
days to be provided and the planned audit coverage are sufficient to meet the 
Committee’s requirements and the areas selected for review are appropriate to 
provide assurance against the key risks within the organisation.

Release of Report

The table below sets out the history of this plan.

Date plan issued: March 2018

P
age 136



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 4

Annex A: Annual Plan – 2018/19

Department Audit Type Days Rationale & Scope
Strategic Development Homelessness Assurance 15 The review will consider the arrangements in place for 

managing homelessness, including the implementation of 
new measures through the Homelessness Reduction Bill.

Policy and Performance Business Continuity Assurance 10 The review will consider the Council’s Business Continuity 
arrangements aimed at ensuring continuity of service 
following a business disruption incident. This review follows 
on from the review of ICT Disaster Recovery carried out in 
2017/18.

Resources Use of Agency, Interim and Casual Workers Assurance 15 The review considers the arrangements and controls in 
place for the use of agency, interim and casual workers. This 
review will also consider the implications arising from IR35 
legislation.

Strategic Development DFG Grants Assurance 5 This is a review to provide a declaration of grant usage return 
to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government Further by 29th June 2018 for additional 
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) funding which was made 
available in the Autumn Budget 2017.   

Policy and Performance Information Governance Assurance 15 The review will consider the arrangements in place for 
managing information, including in line with the new GDPR 
which becomes effective from 25th May 2018.
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme 
of key financial and governance audits.

Policy and Performance Customer Connect Appraisal 10 The review will consider the progress of the Customer 
Connect project, including project governance, timescales, 
milestones and overall implementation.

Policy and Performance Cyber Security Assurance 8 The review will consider the arrangements in place to 
prevent or deter cyber security attacks or incidents, 
focussing on both the network and staff awareness.

Resources Procurement Assurance 15 The review will consider the procurement practices adopted 
by the Council in obtaining goods and services, ensuring 
procurement exercises deliver value for money and are in 
line with EU procurement rules.
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme 
of key financial and governance audits.

Resources Budgetary Control Assurance 10 The review will consider the arrangements in place for 
setting the budget and the medium term financial plan. The 
review will also consider the arrangements for monitoring 

P
age 137



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 5

Department Audit Type Days Rationale & Scope
financial performance through management accounts and 
reporting.
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme 
of key financial and governance audits.

Resources Treasury Management Assurance 10 The review will consider the treasury management 
arrangements including loans and investment activity. 
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme 
of key financial and governance audits.

Strategic Development Health & Safety – Property Risks Assurance 15 The review will consider the arrangements in place for 
undertaking cyclical and periodic maintenance and 
inspection in relation to fire risk assessments, asbestos, lift 
maintenance, water hygiene and electrical testing. The 
inclusion of this review reflects an increased focus on 
property by property owners.   

Resources Housing Benefit Assurance 20 The review will consider the arrangements in place for 
processing housing benefit claims and payments.
This review forms part of the rolling three-year programme 
of key financial and governance audits.

Resources Debtors Assurance 10 The review will consider the controls in place to recover 
monies owed to the Council through monitoring and 
recovery activity. This review forms part of the rolling three-
year programme of key financial and governance audits.

Follow-up Follow up
12

The review will assess the implementation of 
recommendations arising from previous internal audit 
reviews.

Audit Management Management 20

Total days 190

P
age 138



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 6

Annex B: Three year rolling programme of main financial and governance systems

Review Area 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21

Budgetary Control 

Treasury Management 

Housing Benefits 

Information Governance 

Procurement 

Debtors 

Cash Receipting 

NNDR 

Risk Management 

Income Management – Car Parking 

Contract Management 

Main Accounting System 

Payroll 

Creditors 

Council Tax 

Performance Management 

Asset Management 

Insurances 

Corporate Governance – Compliance with Local Code 

P
age 139



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 7

Annex C: Audit Remit

Role

The main objective of the internal audit activity carried out by TIAA is to provide, in an 
economical, efficient and timely manner, an objective evaluation of, and opinion on, the 
overall adequacy and effectiveness of the SLDC's framework of governance, risk 
management and control. TIAA is responsible for giving assurance to SLDC's “Governing 
Body” (being the body with overall responsibility for the organisation) on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of SLDC’s risk management, control and governance processes.

Scope

All SLDC's activities fall within the remit of TIAA. TIAA may consider the adequacy of 
controls necessary to secure propriety, economy, efficiency and effectiveness in all areas. 
It will seek to confirm that SLDC’s management has taken the necessary steps to achieve 
these objectives and manage the associated risks. It is not within the remit of TIAA to 
question the appropriateness of policy decisions. However, TIAA is required to examine 
the arrangements by which such decisions are made, monitored and reviewed.

TIAA may also conduct any special reviews requested by the board, Governance 
Committee or the nominated officer (being the post responsible for the day to day liaison 
with the TIAA), provided such reviews do not compromise the audit service’s objectivity 
or independence, or the achievement of the approved audit plan.

Access

TIAA has unrestricted access to all documents, records, assets, personnel and premises 
of SLDC and is authorised to obtain such information and explanations as they consider 
necessary to form their opinion. The collection of data for this purpose will be carried out 
in a manner prescribed by TIAA’s professional standards, Information Security and 
Information Governance policies.

Standards and Approach

TIAA's work will be performed with due professional care, in accordance with the 
requirements of the PSIAS.

Independence

TIAA has no executive role, nor does it have any responsibility for the development, 
implementation or operation of systems. However, it may provide independent and 
objective advice on risk management, control, governance processes and related 
matters, subject to resource constraints. For day to day administrative purposes only, 
TIAA reports to a nominated officer within SLDC and the reporting arrangements must 
take account of the nature of audit work undertaken. TIAA has a right of direct access to 
the chair of the board, the chair of the Governance Committee and the responsible 
accounting officer (being the post charged with financial responsibility).

To preserve the objectivity and impartiality of TIAA’s professional judgement, 
responsibility for implementing audit recommendations rests with SLDC’s management.

Consultancy activities are only undertaken with distinct regard for potential conflict of 
interest. In this role we will act in an advisory capacity and the nature and scope of the 
work will be agreed in advance and strictly adhered to. 

Irregularities, Including Fraud and Corruption

TIAA will without delay report to the appropriate regulator, serious weaknesses, 
significant fraud, major accounting and other breakdowns subject to the requirements of 
the Proceeds of Crime Act 2003.

TIAA will be informed when evidence of potential irregularity, including fraud, corruption 
or any impropriety, is discovered so that TIAA can consider the adequacy of the relevant 
controls, evaluate the implication of the fraud on the risk management, control and 
governance processes and consider making recommendations as appropriate. The role 
of TIAA is not to investigate the irregularity unless commissioned to do so.

P
age 140



DRAFT SLDC
Annual Internal Audit Plan 2018/19 Page 8

Annex D: Assurance Mapping 

Corporate Assurance Risks

We consider four corporate assurance risks; directed; compliance; operational and 
reputational, and tailor the type of audit accordingly. For all types of audit we also 
taken into account value for money considerations and any linkages to the 
organisational Assurance Framework. The outcomes of our work on these corporate 
assurance risks informs both the individual assignment assurance assessment and 
also the annual assurance opinion statement. Detailed explanations of these 
assurance assessments are set out in full in each audit report.

Assurance Assessment Gradings

We use four levels of assurance assessment: substantial; reasonable, limited and 
no. Detailed explanations of these assurance assessments are set out in full in each 
audit report.

Benchmarking

Where a similar review is carried out at a number of our clients we will subsequent 
to the completion of the review at each of the clients we will where relevant provide 
a benchmarking and lessons learned digest. This digest will include Operational 
Effectiveness Matters for the SLDC to consider.

Types of Audit Review

The Annual Plan includes a range of types of audit review. The different types of 
review focus on one or more of the corporate assurance risks. This approach enables 
more in-depth work to be carried out in the individual assignments than would be 
possible if all four assurance risks were considered in every review. The suite of audit 
reviews and how they individually and collectively enable us to inform our overall 
opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the governance, risk and control 
arrangements is set out in the assurance mapping diagram.

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 142


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Audit Committee 2017/18 Work Programme
	6 Audit Committee 2018/19 Work Programme
	7 Chair of the Audit Committee's Annual Report 2017/18
	Chair of the Audit Committee s Annual Report 2017-18 - Appendix 1

	8 Annual Reporting of Operational Risks to Audit Committee
	9 Certification Work for South Lakeland District Council for Year Ended 31 March 2017
	10 The External Audit Plan for South Lakeland District Council Year Ended 31 March 2018
	11 Internal Audit Progress Report 2017/18
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 1
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 2a
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 2b
	Internal Audit Progress Report 2017-18 - Appendix 3

	12 Interim Internal Audit Annual Report 2017/18
	Interim Internal Audit Annual Report - Appendix 1

	13 Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018-19
	Internal Audit Annual Plan 2018-19 - Appendix 1


